3

V.

For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!



http://www.adobe.com/go/reader


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA AMENDED

Notice is hereby given that the Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold a
regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below.

Meeting of the: Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton
Date & time: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 at 6:00 p.m.

The meeting of the Finance Committee will be conducted as a hybrid meeting

In person: Council Chambers (2™ floor of the Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth St.)
Virtual: You can attend the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom
https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/85075918885?pwd=YUxNYmhheFVTN3E1bHNLWnBETkduUT09
Meeting ID: 850 7591 8885 Passcode: 149501

One tap mobile +19292056099,,850759188854#,,,,*149501# US (New York)

Members: Brett Schumacher (Chair), Greg Jenson (Vice Chair), Leonard “Ozzie” Doom, Ben Heili, Lisa
Reeves, Mayor Tim Swadley (ex-officio), and David Thomas

Call to order
Roll call and verification of quorum
Certification and compliance with open meetings law
Public comment
Communications
a. Update regarding GIP-Glacier Moraine LLC property valuation and related line of credit
b. Update regarding delinquent room taxes, penalties and interest paid in full
c. Update regarding delinquent room tax possible action by Public Safety Committee
6. Reports
a. General Fund comparative balance sheet — fund balance accounts 12-31-2022
b. Library Council presentation 04-19-2023
7. Approval of minutes of March 28, 2023
8. R-053-2023 Adopt Tax Incremental Finance (TIF) application and update related TIF policy
TIME SENSITIVE ITEM
9. R-xxx-2023 Creation of irrevocable fiduciary trust fund for Stoughton Firefighters Pension Fund
10. R-xxx-2023 Approving depositories and signatures
11. R-xxx-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget to provide American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds to
Stoughton Area Community Foundation TIME SENSITIVE ITEM
12. Future agenda items
a. 04/25/2023 — March 2023 financial reports
b. 05/09/2023 — Departmental carryforward requests
c. To be determined — Creation and/or modification of city policies
i. Future treatment of costs eligible for special assessments
ii. Future treatment of interest rate on special assessments
iii. Meal reimbursement rate indexed to IRS rate
iv. Amendment to investment policy
v. Updates to fund balance policy
vi. Development of fund balance policy specific to K-9 Fund
vii. Potential revisions of Capital Improvement Plan and Debt Management policy

Al o e






viii. Creation of debt collection policy
ix. Update policy regarding disposal of property
x. Creation of budget amendment policy
d. To be determined — Creation and/or modification of Tax Incremental Districts
i. Boundary amendment for Tax Incremental District #6 — Business Park
Expansion
ii. New Tax Incremental District activity for Stoughton Trailers
iii. Creation of overlay downtown Tax Incremental District
13. Adjourn

Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special
accommodation, should contact the Director of Finance’s office at (608) 873-6691 at least 24 hours before
the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made.

In addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have access to the
internet should also contact the Director of Finance’s office at the number above at least 24 hours before
the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.

NOTE: AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL







Dave Ehlinger

From: Kathy Grosso <grossoproperties@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2023 3:55 PM

To: Dave Ehlinger

Subject: Re: GIP-Glacier Moraine LLC - property valuation and related line of credit

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking
links, especially from unknown senders.

We will be starting construction on building number 5, in April.... followed by building number 6, of the eight buildings
on the property.

On Thu, Mar 30, 2023, 1:39 PM Dave Ehlinger <DEhlinger@cityofstoughton.com> wrote:

Kathy,

| have attached two PDF documents to this email.

e The firstis Section | (Buyer’s Obligations) of the purchase agreement for the business park property that was
purchased in March 2020.

e The second are my work papers for the decreases to date on the line of credit that is held by the City of
Stoughton, currently at $424,880.

The increased assessed value for any new construction that may have occurred during calendar year 2022 won’t be
known until approximately August 2023.

Based upon the current projections, it appears that the City of Stoughton would need to draw on the letter of credit on
12/15/2024.

| don’t know what was constructed during 2022 or what you intend to construct in 2023. However, | think we would
both agree that

e you would rather have revenue producing buildings for which the City would then get tax incremental revenue,
e as opposed to having the City draw on your line of credit as a one-time revenue source which would result in
less cash available for your operations.





As such, you may want to keep this in mind regarding possible new construction of buildings during calendar year 2023,
which would be the final construction year that would affect the line of credit calculations.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Thanks,

Dave

David P. Ehlinger, CPA

Director of Finance/Comptroller
City of Stoughton

207 S. Forrest St.

Stoughton, WI 53589

Desk (608) 873-6691

City Hall (608) 873-6677

Fax (608) 873-5519

DEhlinger@cityofstoughton.com << Please note new email address

www.cityofstoughton.com K< Please note new website URL






H. CITY OBLIGATIONS.

1. City Improvements. The City shall complete the City Improvements on or before
July 31, 2020. The City’s failure to complete the City Improvements by July 31, 2020 shall, at
Buyer’s option, obligate the City to repurchase the Property from the Buyer at a price of One
Hundred Eighty Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($180,000.00) plus Buyer’s closing costs (not
including any bank or legal fees) as shown on the settlement statement prepared by the Title
Company for Closing.

e Cooperation. Upon the execution of this Agreement by both parties, Buyer may
commence any proceedings that are necessary to obtain any government approvals necessary for
Buyer to develop the Property for Buyer’s Intended Use. The City agrees that it will, in its
capacity as the current owner of the Property, cooperate with Buyer to the extent necessary for
Buyer to apply for governmental permits or approvals. However, nothing in this Agreement is
intended to relieve, nor shall it be construed as relieving, or in any way satisfying other
obligations, procedures or requirements pertaining to the future zoning, division or development
of the Property. This Agreement does not bind the City to approve any land division, zoning or
other application or development activity for the Property. Buyer agrees to comply with all
applicable City of Stoughton plans, policies and ordinances relating to applications for zoning,
land division, development or other approvals.

3. Casualty. The City assumes all risks and liability for damage to or injury
occurring to the Property by fire, storm, accident, or any other casualty or cause until the Closing
has been consummated. If, prior to Closing, the Property suffers any damage from fire or other
casualty equal to or in excess of Twenty-Five Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($25,000.00), Buyer
may either at or prior to Closing (a) terminate this Agreement, in which event the Deposit shall
be refunded to Buyer, and neither party shall have any further right or obligation hereunder, or
(b) consummate the Closing. If the Property suffers any damage less Twenty-Five Thousand and
no/100 Dollars ($25,000.00) prior to the Closing, Buyer agrees that it will consummate the
Closing and accept the assignment of the proceeds of any insurance covering such damage and
there shall be no other reduction in the Purchase Price.

L BUYER’S OBLIGATIONS.

1. Buyer Guarantee to City. Buyer guarantees that, by not later than December 15,
2024, the combination of Actual Tax Increment and Projected Actual Tax Increment (together
the “Combined Actual Tax Increment”) will be not less than $550,000. If, by December 15,
2024, the Combined Actual Tax Increment is less than $550,000, then the City shall be entitled
to draw on the Letter of Credit the difference between $550,000 and the Combined Actual Tax
Increment.

2. Letter of Credit.

(a) Buyer shall provide an irrevocable letter of credit issued pursuant to
Chapter 405 of the Wisconsin Statutes to the City prior to the closing date to secure Buyer’s tax
increment guarantee obligation under Section 1.1 of this Agreement. The letter of credit shall be





in a form acceptable to the City, and shall be issued by an entity that is acceptable to the City, or
that has a rating of its long-term unsecured debt not lower than A1 by Moody’s Investors Service
or A+ by Standard and Poor’s. It shall be payable at sight to the City, and shall bear an
expiration date not earlier than December 31, 2024. The letter of credit shall be payable to the
City at any time upon presentation of the following: (1) a sight draft drawn on the issuing bank
in an amount to which the City is entitled under this Agreement; (2) an affidavit executed by a
person authorized by the City stating that monies are due from Buyer pursuant to the guarantee
obligation in Section I. 1.of this Agreement; and (3) the letter of credit.

(b) Beginning on December 15, 2021, and annually thereafter until December
15, 2024, the amount of the required letter of credit may be reduced by the Combined Actual Tax
Increment as of that date.

J. NOTICES.

All notices or directions desired or required to be given under this Agreement shall be in
writing and personally delivered, sent by commercial overnight courier, email or confirmed
facsimile transmission and directed as follows:

If to Buyer: GIP-Glacier Moraine LLC
PO Box 159
Cottage Grove, WI 53527
Telephone: 608.577.0779
Email: grossoproperties@gmail.com

If to the City: City of Stoughton
207 S. Forrest Street
Stoughton, WI 53589
Attn: Tim Swadley
Telephone: 608.873.6677
Email: tswadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us

With a copy to: Stafford Rosenbaum, LLP
222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900
Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1784
Attention: Matthew Dregne
Telephone: 608.259.2618
Email: mdregne@staffordlaw.com

Notices personally delivered shall be deemed received when given. Notices sent by email
or confirmed facsimile transmission shall be deemed received when given, if prior to 5 PM,
recipient’s local time, on a business day, otherwise on the next occurring business day. Notices
or demands sent by commercial overnight courier shall be deemed received on the next business
day following deposit.





City of Stoughton
TID #6 -- Grosso Valuation
Last Updated 12/14/2022

S:\Finance\TIF\TIF 6-Business Park Expansion\Valuation Materials\Grosso revised

Taxes

Construction Valuation Revenue Mill Tax Mill Rate
Year Value Added Year Increment Year Rate Increment Change
1 2015 $ - 2016 $ - 2017 $ 23.7900
2 2016 $ - 2017 $ - 2018 $ 23.8696 0.33%
3 2017 $ - 2018 $ - 2019 $ 22.9622 -3.80%
4 2018 $ - 2019 $ - 2020 $ 22.5816 -1.66%
5 2019 $ - 2020 $ - 2021 $ 221444 -1.94%
6 2020 $ 355,500 2021 $ 355,500 2022 $ 20.6422 -6.78%
7 2021 $ 158,400 2022 $ 513,900 2023 $ 18.0426 -12.59%
8 2022 $ - 2023 $ 513,900 2024 $ 17.7720 A -1.50%
9 2023 $ - 2024 $ 513,900 2025 $ 175054 A -1.50%
10 2024 $ - 2025 $ 513,900 2026 $ 17.2428 -1.50%
11 2025 $ - 2026 $ 513,900 2027 $ 16.9842 -1.50%
12 2026 $ - 2027 $ 513,900 2028 $ 16.7294 -1.50%
13 2027 $ - 2028 $ 513,900 2029 $ 16.4785 -1.50%
14 2028 $ - 2029 $ 513,900 2030 $ 16.2313 -1.50%
15 2029 $ - 2030 $ 513,900 2031 $ 15.9878 -1.50%
16 2030 $ - 2031 $ 513,900 2032 $ 15.7480 -1.50%
17 2031 $ - 2032 $ 513,900 2033 $ 15.5118 -1.50%
18 2032 $ - 2033 $ 513,900 2034 $ 15.2791 -1.50%
19 2033 $ - 2034 $ 513,900 2035 $ 15.0499 -1.50%
20 2034 $ - 2035 $ 513,900 2036 $ 14.8242 -1.50%
$ 513,900 $ 125,220.16
Reduction in LOC: Capital Improvements (P&I)

Valuation Year Value Added LOC Reduction LOC Balance Reduction Date Principal $ 2,617,931
2021 $ 355,500 $ 99,235 $ 450,765 12/15/2021 Interest $ 379,640
2022 $ 158,400 $ 25,985 $ 424,780 12/15/2022 $ 2,997,571
2023 $ = $ - $ 424,780 12/15/2023
2024 $ = $ = $ 424,780 12/15/2024 Developable Acres 24.50

$ 513,900 $ 125,220 Cost to Recover / Acre $ 122,350
12/15/2024 Draw on LOC $ 424,779.84 Grosso $ 542,010
Minimum Forecasted Incremental Revenue by 12/31/24 $ 550,000






		Memo Style.pdf

		5a GIP-Glacier Moraine LLC property valuation and related line of credit.pdf

		Section I - Buyers Obligation - Purchase and Sale Agreement-City of Stoughton & GIP-Glacier Moraine LLC.pdf

		Grosso revised.pdf










Period
Ending

3/31/2021
6/30/2021
9/30/2021
12/31/2021
3/31/2022
6/30/2022
9/30/2022
12/31/2022
3/31/2023
6/30/2023
9/30/2023
12/31/2023

Due
Date

4/30/2021
7/31/2021
10/31/2021
1/31/2022
4/30/2022
7/31/2022
10/31/2022
1/31/2023
4/30/2023
7/31/2023
10/31/2023
1/31/2024

04/04/2023 recap

Payment
Received

Days
Late

Not indicated

8/2/2021
11/1/2021
3/31/2022

7/5/2022
10/3/2022
11/2/2022
3/29/2023

2nd quarter 2022 delinquent penalty
2nd quarter 2022 delinquent interest
1st quarter 2023 delinquent room taxes
1st quarter 2023 delinquent penalty

1st quarter 2023 delinquent interest

Unreconciled payment amount

Total payments received

59
66
64

57

City of Stoughton
Tru by Hilton - Room Tax Interest and Penalties

Room Interest
Tax Starts
S 4,945.46
S 14,211.88 Grace period
$ 30,845.81 Grace period
S 19,855.91 Waived
$ 11,387.62 4/30/2022
S 22,916.11 7/31/2022
$ 34,329.35 Grace period
S 21,516.02 1/31/2023
3/29/2023 4/3/2023
S 5,000.00
S 700.67
S 21,516.02
S 5,000.00
S 424.43
S 902.90
$ 21,516.02 S 12,028.00

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Interest Days Interest Calculated Actual
Through @12% Penalty Penalty
at 25%
8/1/2022 93 S 348.18 Waived
11/1/2022 93 S 700.67 $5,729.03 ' S 5,000.00

4/1/2023 60 S 424.43 $ 5,379.01 S 5,000.00

No other receivable for the City Clerk or Special
Assessments could be found. As per Stoughton Utilities, Tru
by Hilton has an outstanding receivable of $7,877.20 as of
04/04/2023. Ehlinger directed that the overpayment be
sent to Stoughton Utilities rather than refunded to the hotel,
with the caveat that Stoughton Utilities has to return the
monies to the City if the City does discover what the
overpayment relates to.





v&“ g\%‘\

'& @,\Q\\
s

3%\ m
xpress Envelope

BILL.COM A
6200 AMERICA CENTER DR 0.1 LBSLTR 10F1 o ';;: “k

STE 100 4
SAN JOSE CA 95002 5 \\

suip  CITY TREASURER-TRU WY o3
To. 207 FORREST ST A WS

STOUGHTON WI 53589-1718

0oo0lu4a

25@‘&?" BELWI 537 9-30

.éﬁn
Eexo |b|||llI|H|I|I1I||I|IIII|||

UPS NEXT DAY AIR

TRACKING #: 1Z A93 3T7 01 2622 9247

BILLING: P/P
REF1: 257Bl0001_2094
REF2: CON_REF1






Remitt Info:  Inv #Q4 2022 R T
(oW Hospitlty LLG oy T

2500 Jackson St
Stoughton, WI 53589
6082052566

PAY TO THE CITY TREASURER CITY OF STOUGHTON
ORDER OF

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.

Verify: 888-237-9615

90-7162/3222

Twenty-One Thousand Five Hundred Sixteen and 02/100

3/27/2023

$21516.02

DOLLARS

CITY TREASURER CITY OF STOUGHTON
207 S FORREST STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589

®2073IILSLOM 12322278270

From: KPW Hospitality LLC
Pay To: CITY TREASURER CITY OF STOUGHTON
Invoice # Bill Amount

ca53ITERTEN

Date: 3/27/2023
Check #: 207334540
Payment Amount

Q4 2022 Room Tax $21,516.02

$21,516.02

Total

$21,516.02

CITY OF STOUGHTON
TRANSIENT ROOM TAX
QUARTERLY RETURN
For Quarter Ending |2 3. 203
Date Due _1-51:2623

ooy dhldon
(Hatelfvolel Name)

Derry ko St Stoualvon r 53554

[Address)

go
Gross eeceipls for the quarter (all sales) § N5, 144,
Less: Recelpts from sources other than room rent 55,352 47

Rent recelved from non-transient guests $, .60
(stay aver 30 consecutive days)

Renis hi!bed directly to gavernmental units $ 301 4t e
Totat §_ 3o, 544,08
Taxable Room Rent 5398 120&.33
City of Stoughton Room Tax at 6% x L P .
Tax Due to the City of Stoughton s 2,505

Make Check Payable to:

City Treasurer Persons falling to comply with the provisions of the
City of Stoughton enabling Cily legislation will be subject to penalties
207 S Forrest St as provided.

Stoughton, W( 53588

| hereby certify that the information supplied hereon Is accurate 1o the best of my
knowledge and belief,

Signature of Owner and Authorized Agent W W

Print Name and Titleg % alol” AQuimt
Da

25781P0001 Sent by Bill.com, LLC U.S. Patent No. 8,521,626

VOID AFTER 90 DAYS

@ &

ﬁa»&ﬁ?‘

Bill.com, LLC, lssusy

Get paid up to
7 days earlier
with Bill.com!

Create a free account and get your
next payment deposited directly to

your bank account.

Take the hassle out of getting paid

= Say hello to fast & secure payments

= No more snail mail or trips to the bank

To get started, go to bilL.com/epay

and enter this code:

bhe02zqgs

206294_257BI0001_BR_UPS_2094/000148/000296/i




dehlinger

Highlight





Remittance Info:  Multiple invoices (details on stub)

KPW Hospitality LLC
2500 Jackson St
Stoughton, WI 53589
6082052566

ORDER OF

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 0207374281
Verify: 888-237-9615
90-7162/3222
3/30/2023
PAYTOTHE  CITY TREASURER CITY OF STOUGHTON $ 12028.00
DOLLARS

Twelve Thousand Twenty-Eight and 00/100

0010134 01 MB 0.531 **AUTO T2 05061 53589-171807  -C11-P10144-)
|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||l|||||||||||||

CITY TREASURER CITY OF STOUGHTON
207 S FORREST STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589-1718

*020737L2B A ;322278627

From: KPW Hospitality LLC
Pay To: CITY TREASURER CITY OF STOUGHTON

VOID AFTER 90 DAYS

%1&%'

Bill com, LLC issuer

2d53I7EL7EN

Date: 3/30/2023
Check #: 207374281

Get paid up to

$5,700.67 7 days ea rlier

Invoice # Bill Amount Payment Amount
22 room tax late fee $6,327.33 $6,327.33
0000004288 $5,700.67

Total $12,028.00

5061-11-00-0010134-0001-0010164

with Bill.com!

Create a free account and get your
next payment deposited directly to
your bank account.

Take the hassle out of getting paid
- Say hello to fast & secure payments

- No more snail mail or trips to the bank

To get started, go to bill.com/epay
and enter this code:

bhe02zqs

Sent by Bill.com, LLC U.S. Patent No. 8,521,626






		Tru by Hilton 2023.pdf

		5b Tru by Hilton 4th qtr 2022 room tax payment recd 03-29-2023.pdf

		KPW Hospitality (003).pdf




Dave Ehlinger

From: Brett Schumacher

Sent: Sunday, April 2, 2023 4:55 PM

To: Dave Ehlinger; Greg Jenson

Cc: Brett Schumacher; Tim Swadley

Subject: RE: [External] - RE: Update to the ordinances regarding license and room tax

We can have a look at it also. If licenses are renewed in June/July then there isn't a particular urgency. Changes would be
effective after the new issuance.

Brett

Sent from my Galaxy

-------- Original message --------

From: Dave Ehlinger <DEhlinger@cityofstoughton.com>

Date: 4/1/23 9:43 AM (GMT-06:00)

To: Greg Jenson <GJenson@cityofstoughton.com>

Cc: Brett Schumacher <BSchumacher@cityofstoughton.com>, Tim Swadley <TSwadley@cityofstoughton.com>
Subject: RE: [External] - RE: Update to the ordinances regarding license and room tax

Sounds like a plan.

From: Greg Jenson <GJenson@cityofstoughton.com>

Sent: Friday, March 31, 2023 8:30 PM

To: Dave Ehlinger <DEhlinger@cityofstoughton.com>

Subject: RE: [External] - RE: Update to the ordinances regarding license and room tax

Absolutly, this will need to go through P/S committee. If Finance wants to take a look at it before going to Council, we
can send it there first after approved by P/S.

Alder Greg Jenson

District 3





From: Dave Ehlinger <DEhlinger@cityofstoughton.com>

Date: 3/30/23 10:57 AM (GMT-06:00)

To: "Rick A. Manthe" <rmanthe@staffordlaw.com>, Matthew Dregne <MDREGNE@staffordlaw.com>, Tim Swadley
<TSwadley@cityofstoughton.com>

Cc: Greg Jenson <GJenson@cityofstoughton.com>, Candee Christen <CChristen@cityofstoughton.com>, Brett
Schumacher <BSchumacher@cityofstoughton.com>, Dan Jenks <djenks@cityofstoughton.com>

Subject: RE: [External] - RE: Update to the ordinances regarding license and room tax

From: Dave Ehlinger <DEhlinger@cityofstoughton.com>

Date: 3/30/23 10:57 AM (GMT-06:00)

To: "Rick A. Manthe" <rmanthe@staffordlaw.com>, Matthew Dregne <MDREGNE@staffordlaw.com>, Tim Swadley
<TSwadley@cityofstoughton.com>

Cc: Greg Jenson <GJenson@cityofstoughton.com>, Candee Christen <CChristen@cityofstoughton.com>, Brett
Schumacher <BSchumacher@cityofstoughton.com>, Dan Jenks <djenks@cityofstoughton.com>

Subject: RE: [External] - RE: Update to the ordinances regarding license and room tax

Rick,

Thanks for looking into this. Yes, please go ahead and draft an ordinance. | believe the intent is to be able to do this any
time during the year, not just when the license is being issued.

Greg and Dan,

Am | correct in assuming that the Public Safety Committee would want to be involved in this discussion?





Brett,

Did you want this on a Finance Committee agenda before, after, or concurrent with Public Safety?

Thanks,

Dave

From: Rick A. Manthe <rmanthe@staffordlaw.com>

Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2023 10:28 AM

To: Matthew Dregne <MDREGNE @staffordlaw.com>; Dave Ehlinger <DEhlinger@cityofstoughton.com>; Tim Swadley
<TSwadley@cityofstoughton.com>

Subject: RE: [External] - RE: Update to the ordinances regarding license and room tax

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking
links, especially from unknown senders.

Mayor Swadley and Dave,

Matt asked me to look into whether the City could require payment of room taxes as a condition of holding a liquor
license. | believe the City could do so. The Court of Appeals previously determined that an ordinance could impose a
requirement to pay local taxes:

“Nothing in ch. 125, Stats., expressly limits the city's authority to require liquor licensees to meet local
requirements in addition to those found in the statutes. Nor do we see that conditioning the license on payment
of outstanding local taxes, assessments and forfeitures conflicts with the spirit of the state's regulatory scheme.
It is a local condition on the issuance of licenses for the sale of liquor that is geared to local concerns and offers
local benefits.”

Tavern League of Wisconsin v. City of Madison, 131 Wis. 2d 477, 484, 389 N.W.2d 54, 56 (Ct. App. 1986). The only
prohibition, as it pertains to taxes, would be a requirement that the owner of the tavern has paid all county, state, and
federal taxes.





| would be happy to draft an ordinance requiring payment of room taxes as a condition of a liquor license if you would
like.

STAFFORD Rick Manthe
ROSENBAUM | rmanthe@staffordlaw.com 608.259.2684 | c: 715.701.3601
Celebrating
www.staffordlaw.com | LinkedIn
140
Years
of Wisconsin member firm of ALFA International,
Excellence the premiere global network of independent law firms.

This is a transmission from the law firm of Stafford Rosenbaum LLP and may contain information which is privileged, confidential, and protected by the attorney-client
or attorney work product privileges. If you are not the addressee, note that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is prohibited.
If you have received this transmission in error, please destroy it and notify me immediately at the telephone number included above.

Begin forwarded message:

From: Greg Jenson <GJenson@cityofstoughton.com>

Date: March 29, 2023 at 7:15:41 PM CDT

To: Candee Christen <CChristen@cityofstoughton.com>, Greg Jenson <GJenson@cityofstoughton.com>
Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@cityofstoughton.com>, Matthew Dregne <MDREGNE@staffordlaw.com>
Subject: [External] - RE: Update to the ordinances regarding license and room tax

Basically yes. We wanted to see if it is feasible to use the suspension of thier liquor license as an incentive to
keep up to date on thier room tax payments. My initial thought is that we can't, but want Matt's opinion so it is
clear to the committee.

Greg Jenson
3rd Dist Alderperson
608 206 3170

Sent from my Galaxy Tab A





From: Candee Christen <CChristen@cityofstoughton.com>

Date: 3/29/23 8:46 AM (GMT-06:00)

To: Greg Jenson <GJenson@cityofstoughton.com>

Cc: Tim Swadley <T'Swadley@cityofstoughton.com>, 'Matthew Dregne' <MDREGNE@staffordlaw.com>

Subject: Update to the ordinances regarding license and room tax

Good morning Greg,

It has been shared with me that Finance would like to have an update to the Room Tax ordinance that a business
that falls behind on room taxes owed to the city may stem the revocation process of their liquor license.

Is this an accurate description of what you would like looked into by Matt?

Candee J. Christen, WCMC
City Clerk

City of Stoughton

207 S. Forrest Street
Stoughton, WI 53589
608-873-6677
608-873-5519 Fax

cchristen@cityofstoughton.com







Page 1 of 2

04/04/2023 City of Stoughton
Comparative Balance Sheet - Fund Balance Accounts
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2022

Prior Current Increase
GL Number Description Year Year (Decrease)
(Audited) (Unaudited)

Nonspendable Assets

A Reclass prepaid items S 2,799 $ 163,045
B Reclass delinquent items 14,027 15,760
C Reclass noncurrent interfunds 1,046,023 1,103,620
100-00000-35820 RESERVE FOR CVMIC EQUITY 257,805 257,805
100-00000-39500 FUND BALANCE NONSPENDABLE
Subtotal - Nonspendable Assets 1,320,654 1,540,231 219,577

Restricted Fund Balances

Bryant Foundation 27,570
Shop With A Cop 7,316
Paul Kraby Memorial 8,294
Buddy Bags 46
100-00000-39620 FUND BAL REST POLICE - 43,226
Youth Center 11,065
Virgin Lake Boardwalk 148
100-00000-39630 FUND BAL REST REC PROGRAMS - 11,214
100-00000-39640 FUND BAL REST SENIOR SENTER (Bryant grant) - 148,878
Subtotal - Restricted Fund Balances - 203,318 203,318

Committed Fund Balances

100-00000-39701 FUND BAL COMMIT TAX LEVY - 85,000
Subtotal - Committed Fund Balances - 85,000 85,000

Assigned Fund Balance

100-00000-34002 RESERVED---SAFETY CAMP 31,596 -
Baker Tilly adjustment 149

100-00000-34008 RESERVED YOUTH GIFT FUND 20,571 -
Baker Tilly adjustment (350)

100-00000-34010 RESERVED-BRYANT GRANT 148,878 -
Baker Tilly adjustment (19,537)

100-00000-34020 RESERVED - POOL SINKING FUND 21,233 -
Baker Tilly adjustment (0)

100-00000-34019 RESERVED---SHOP WITH A COP 6,596 -
Baker Tilly adjustment 194

100-00000-34022 RESERVED - TREE PLANTINGS DEVELOPER 37,680 -
Baker Tilly adjustment (1,285)

100-00000-34021 RESERVED - POLICE FEDERAL FUNDS (8,993) -
Baker Tilly adjustment 11,592

100-00000-34023 RESERVED: PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL 7,433 -
Baker Tilly adjustment (2,857)
D Utility payment in lieu of taxes 850,067

100-00000-34027 RESERVED-VIRGIN LAKE BOARDWALK 148 -
Baker Tilly adjustment (0)

100-00000-34029 RESERVED---BUDDY BAGS 46 -
Arts Council 6,442

S:\Finance\Audits\2022 Audit\Acct recon and backup 2022\General Fund comparative balance sheet - fund balance accounts 12-31-2022
Summary





Page 2 of 2

04/04/2023 City of Stoughton
Comparative Balance Sheet - Fund Balance Accounts
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2022
Prior Current Increase
GL Number Description Year Year (Decrease)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
100-00000-34030 RESERVED - NATIONAL NIGHT OUT 3,952 -
Baker Tilly adjustment (1,782)
100-00000-39804 FUND BAL ASSIGN RETIREMENT - 540,926
100-00000-39820 FUND BAL ASSIGN POLICE (Safety Camp) - 26,555
Subtotal - Assigned Fund Balances 1,111,773 567,481 (544,292)
Unassigned Fund Balance
100-00000-34501 DESIGNATED-LIABILITY INS LOSS 70,000 -
100-00000-34745 RESERVED - HUTCHINS SCHOLARSHIP FUND (737) -
100-00000-35800 RESERVE FOR LONG TERM ADVANCE 876,239 -
100-00000-35810 RESERVE FOR NON CURRENT ASSETS 13,408 -
100-00000-39000 FUND BALANCE 5,685,561 -
a Reclass prepaid items (2,799)
B Reclass delinquent items (14,027)
C Reclass noncurrent interfunds (1,046,023)
D Utility reclass as per Baker Tilly (850,067)
Unreconciled variance with audited financials 7,432
100-00000-39900 FUND BALANCE UNASSIGNED - 4,775,386
General Fund Net of Revenues VS Expenditures 881
212-00000-39000 FUND BALANCE (2,613) (2,613)
Safety Building Fund Net of Revenues VS Expenditures 2,613
239-00000-39000 FUND BALANCE 6,442 6,442
Stoughton Arts Council Net of Revenues VS Expenditures (6,442)
250-00000-39000 FUND BALANCE 144,754 144,754
Sick Leave Fund Net of Revenues VS Expenditures (144,754)
Subtotal - Unassigned Fund Balance 4,887,570 4,776,267 (111,303)
General Fund totals 7,319,997 7,172,297 (147,700)

S:\Finance\Audits\2022 Audit\Acct recon and backup 2022\General Fund comparative balance sheet - fund balance accounts 12-31-2022

Summary






04/05/2023

BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY

Period Ending 12/31/2022

Unaudited Baker Tilly has not completed their annual audit for
Current Year Ending calendar year 2022. No material changes to the various
GL Number Description Beg. Balance  Balance Library funds is anticipated as a result of the audit.
Fund 215 - LIBRARY FUND Cash decreased primarily due to (a) planned usage of
*E* Assets *** $26,739 of fund balance in the 2022 adopted budget and
215-00000-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING 92,119.37 43,614.86 (b) $30,000 usage of fund balance for the Children's area
215-00000-11102 US BANK - CC 1,394.95 4,102.79 remodel.
215-00000-13012 RECEIVABLES-PRIOR YEAR 0.00 307.10
215-00000-13070 TAXES RECEIVABLE 0.00 726,880.00
Total Assets 93,514.32 774,904.75 There was a change in accounting methodology
between 2021 and 2022 for property tax presentation.
*E* Liabilities ***
215-00000-21100 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 4,913.41 5,218.34
215-00000-21700 ACCRUED PAYROLL 24,208.16  24,404.18
215-00000-26600 DEF INFLOW - PROPERTY TAXES 0.00 726,880.00 There was a change in accounting methodology
Total Liabilities 29,121.57 756,502.52 between 2021 and 2022 for property tax presentation.
*** Fund Balance ***
215-00000-39000 FUND BALANCE 64,392.75 0.00 Restrictions to the fund balance are due to donor
215-00000-39600 FUND BALANCE RESTRICTED 0.00 64,392.75 restrictions and/or Wisconsin Statutes Chapter 43, as the
Library Board has control of expenditures for the Library.
Total Fund Balance 64,392.75 64,392.75
Because the audit has not been completed yet, the
Beginning Fund Balance 64,392.75 general ledger for 2022 has not been closed yet. The
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures (45,990.52)  highlighted value reflects the ending fund balance at
Ending Fund Balance 18,402.23 12/31/2022.
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 774,904.75






04/06/2023
PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 100.00

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY

Baker Tilly has not completed their annual audit for
calendar year 2022. No material changes to the various
Library funds is anticipated as a result of the audit.

Unaudited
2022 2022 YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE Surplus
ORIGINAL Amended 12/31/2022 MONTH 12/31/22 BALANCE (Deficit)

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET Budget NORM (ABNORM)  INCR (DECR)  NORM (ABNORM)
Fund 215 - LIBRARY FUND
215-00000-41110 PROPERTY TAX - OPERATIONS 0.00 646,350.00 646,350.00 0.00 0.00
PROPERTY TAX OPERATIONS 0.00 646,350.00 646,350.00 0.00 0.00
Property tax revenue was separated out throughout the City to distinguish from other transfer activity.
215-00000-43330 FED GRANT - COVID-19 0.00 0.00 10.57 0.00 (10.57)
215-00000-43720 DANE COUNTY SERVICE FEES 249,429.00 249,429.00 249,897.00 0.00 (468.00)
215-00000-43725 OTHER COUNTIES SERVICE FEES 15,952.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 265,381.00 249,429.00 249,907.57 0.00 (478.57)
215-00000-46710 LIBRARY FEES 6,000.00 6,000.00 4,031.28 (27.91) 1,968.72
215-00000-46712 COPY MACHINE 3,700.00 3,700.00 3,256.91 454.55 443.09
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 9,700.00 9,700.00 7,288.19 426.64 2,411.81
Charges to Dane County is for out of county residents usage of Stoughton Library materials.
215-00000-47301 CHARGES TO DANE COUNTY 0.00 15,952.00 15,952.74 0.00 (0.74)
215-00000-47302 CHARGES TO MUNICIPALITIES 0.00 0.00 15.95 15.95 (15.95)
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR 0.00 15,952.00 15,968.69 15.95 (16.69)
Charges to municipalities is reimbursement for damaged books.
215-00000-48110 INTEREST INCOME 0.00 0.00 1,793.39 141.14 (1,793.39)
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.00 0.00 1,793.39 141.14 (1,793.39)

The adopted budgets for prior years for interest income was low (5100 for 2021 and zero for 2022). The adopted budget for 2023 was for 51,000, which

may have been too conservative.

215-00000-49204 INTRAFUND TRANSFER IN 0.00
215-00000-49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 646,350.00
215-00000-49910 FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY 0.00
215-00000-49940 FUND BAL APPLIED - DEFICITS 0.00

26,220.44

0.00
26,739.00
30,000.00

26,220.44 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 26,739.00
0.00 0.00 30,000.00





04/06/2023 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY
PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022

% Fiscal Year Completed: 100.00

Baker Tilly has not completed their annual audit for
calendar year 2022. No material changes to the various
Library funds is anticipated as a result of the audit.

Unaudited
2022 2022 YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE
ORIGINAL Amended 12/31/2022 MONTH 12/31/22 BALANCE
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET Budget NORM (ABNORM) INCR (DECR) NORM (ABNORM)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 646,350.00 82,959.44 26,220.44 0.00 56,739.00

49204 - The intrafund transfer in was from the Library Special Gift Fund in relation to the Children's Center remodeling.

49210 - The Transfer In from the General Fund was the previous accounting methodology related to property taxes.

49910 - The adopted budget for 2022 planned for using 5§26.739 of fund balance (i.e. expenditures were more than revenues. This is reflected in the final
figure at the bottom of the '2022 original budget' column. The amended budget reflects a balance budget (i.e. revenues and expenditures are equal) to
better highlight the usage of fund balance.

49940 - The Library Board authorized the usage 530,000 in fund balance in relation to the Children's Center remodeling.

Total Revenue: 921,431.00 1,004,390.44 947,528.28 583.73 56,862.16
215-55110-50110 SALARIES 86,916.00 86,766.00 86,756.88 9,860.44 9.12
215-55110-50120 WAGES 413,759.00 408,571.00 393,593.54 41,593.47 14,977.46
215-55110-50127 WAGES - PART TIME 75,821.00 75,821.00 81,127.98 8,398.63 (5,306.98)
215-55110-50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 8,500.00 8,500.00 7,973.87 1,140.15 526.13
215-55110-50129 WAGES - LONGEVITY 0.00 5,338.00 5,337.50 5,337.50 0.50
WAGES 584,996.00 584,996.00 574,789.77 66,330.19 10,206.23
215-55110-50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 75,001.00 0.00 0.00 (64,071.58) 0.00
215-55110-50152 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 104,973.00 0.00 0.00 (103,013.79) 0.00
215-55110-50153 SELF INSURED LOSSES 0.00 0.00 2,881.20 0.00 (2,881.20)
215-55110-50160 FICA TAXES 0.00 44,460.00 42,149.01 42,149.01 2,310.99
215-55110-50161 WRS - GENERAL 0.00 29,466.00 29,257.38 29,257.38 208.62
215-55110-50163 HEALTH INSURANCE 0.00 98,197.00 105,602.64 105,602.64 (7,405.64)
215-55110-50164 DENTAL INSURANCE 0.00 6,776.00 4,105.07 4,105.07 2,670.93
215-55110-50165 LIFE INSURANCE 0.00 1,075.00 1,175.15 1,175.15 (100.15)
BENEFITS 179,974.00 179,974.00 185,170.45 15,203.88 (5,196.45)
215-55110-50211 POSTAGE 500.00 500.00 660.48 146.80 (160.48)
215-55110-50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,600.00 1,600.00 1,878.76 14.38 (278.76)
215-55110-50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 200.00 200.00 588.00 0.00 (388.00)
215-55110-50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 300.00 300.00 51.72 0.00 248.28

Surplus
(Deficit)

1.7%

-2.9%





04/06/2023

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 100.00

Baker Tilly has not completed their annual audit for
calendar year 2022. No material changes to the various
Library funds is anticipated as a result of the audit.

Unaudited
2022 2022 YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE Surplus
ORIGINAL Amended 12/31/2022 MONTH 12/31/22 BALANCE (Deficit)

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET Budget NORM (ABNORM)  INCR (DECR)  NORM (ABNORM)
215-55110-50220 UTILITIES 19,600.00 19,600.00 20,920.32 2,224.84 (1,320.32)
215-55110-50221 UTILITIES-BUILDING 2 5,500.00 5,500.00 7,920.80 2,389.95 (2,420.80)
215-55110-50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,900.00 1,900.00 2,921.41 441.52 (1,021.41)
215-55110-50250 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 9,000.00 9,000.00 6,695.37 843.19 2,304.63
215-55110-50289 TECHNOLOGY COSTS 53,600.00 53,600.00 53,048.03 78.00 551.97
215-55110-50300 MISC EXPENSES 500.00 500.00 498.03 38.98 1.97
215-55110-50313 PROGRAMS/PUBLICITY 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,386.63 0.00 113.37
215-55110-50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 600.00 600.00 150.00 0.00 450.00
215-55110-50326 PERIODICALS 5,200.00 5,200.00 4,522.78 0.00 677.22
215-55110-50327 E-RESOURCES 9,700.00 9,700.00 9,634.99 0.00 65.01
215-55110-50328 AUDIO VISUAL 11,000.00 11,000.00 10,519.94 2,409.99 480.06
215-55110-50329 BOOKS 50,000.00 50,000.00 51,255.59 9,837.37 (1,255.59)
215-55110-50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 4,500.00 4,500.00 3,587.04 464.64 912.96
215-55110-50341 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-1 200.00 200.00 57.13 4.47 142.87
215-55110-50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 4,800.00 4,800.00 6,090.24 1,455.04 (1,290.24)
OPERATIONAL 183,200.00 183,200.00 185,387.26 20,349.17 (2,187.26) -1.2%
CAPITAL OUTLAY
215-55110-50810 CAPITAL-EQUIPMENT 0.00 56,220.44 48,171.32 27,781.32 8,049.12 14.3%
CAPITAL OUTLAY Children's Center remodeling 0.00 56,220.44 48,171.32 27,781.32 8,049.12
Total Expenditure: 948,170.00 1,004,390.44 993,518.80 129,664.56 10,871.64 1.1%
TOTAL REVENUES 921,431.00 1,004,390.44 947,528.28 583.73 56,862.16
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 948,170.00 1,004,390.44 993,518.80 129,664.56 10,871.64
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (26,739.00) 0.00 (45,990.52) (129,080.83) 45,990.52

While the Library Fund had an operating deficit of 545,991, this is less than the planned usage of fund balance of S56,739. The majority of this is the result of the
Children's Center remodeling being less than planned.
The life-to-date surplus (i.e. fund balance) remains in the the Library Fund. No funds lapse to the General Fund.





04/06/2023

BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY
Period Ending 12/31/2022

Unaudited |Baker Tilly has not completed their annual audit for
Current Year Ending calendar year 2022. No material changes to the various

GL Number Description Beg. Balance Balance |Library funds is anticipated as a result of the audit.
Fund 217 - LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND
* 3k %k AssetS %k %k ok
217-00000-11100  PRIMARY CHECKING 91,881.67 63,945.57
217-00000-11102 US BANK - CC 788.49 847.40
217-00000-11302  WISC INVESTMENT FUND 197,338.62 200,297.55 Receivables were for 2022 revenues where the cash
217-00000-13012 RECEIVABLES-PRIOR YEAR 0.00 4,418.85 was received during 2023.

Total Assets 290,008.78  269,509.37
*E* Liabilities ***
217-00000-21100  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 2,122.34 3,406.79

Total Liabilities 2,122.34 3,406.79
*** Fund Balance *** The fund balance categories of designated, reserved,
217-00000-34000 FUND BALANCE-DESIGNATED 120,631.25 0.00 and undesignated stopped being used in General
217-00000-34700 RESERVED BUILDING FUND 128,576.20 0.00 Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in calendar year
217-00000-34800  RESERVED: FUNDRAISING ACCT 26,220.44 0.00 2011 as per Governmental Accounting Standards Board
217-00000-39000 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED 12,458.55 0.00 (GASB) Statement No. 54- Fund Balance Reporting and
217-00000-39600 FUND BALANCE RESTRICTED 0.00 287,886.44 Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The fund balances

Total Fund Balance 287,886.44 287,886.44 are all now classified as restricted due to outside donor

restrictions.
Beginning Fund Balance 287,886.44 Because the audit has not been completed yet, the

Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
Ending Fund Balance
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

(21,783.86) general ledger for 2022 has not been closed yet. The

266,102.58

269,509.37

highlighted value reflects the ending fund balance at
12/31/2022.






04/06/2023

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY
PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 100.00

Baker Tilly has not completed their annual audit for
calendar year 2022. No material changes to the various
Library funds is anticipated as a result of the audit.

Unaudited

2022 2022 YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE

ORIGINAL  Amended 12/31/2022 MONTH 12/31/22 BALANCE

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET Budget NORM (ABNORM) INCR (DECR) NORM (ABNORM)
Fund 217 - LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND

217-00000-48110 INTEREST INCOME 50.00 50.00 3,504.06 779.29 (3,454.06)

217-00000-48500 DONATIONS - DESIGNATED 60,000.00 78,494.00 69,426.36 5,755.01 9,067.64

217-00000-49910 FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY 0.00 (10,050.00) 0.00 0.00 (10,050.00)

The 2022 adopted budget assumed a surplus for the year (i.e. revenues exceeding expenditures. The budget was modified to reflect a balanced
budget (i.e. revenues match expenditures.)

217-00000-49920 FUND BAL APPLIED - TRANSFERS 0.00 26,220.00 0.00 0.00 26,220.00
The $26,000 reflects the transfer to the Library Fund related to the Children's Center remodel.
217-00000-49940 FUND BAL APPLIED - DEFICITS 0.00 5,613.00 0.00 0.00 5,613.00

Between the 526,220 transferred to the Library Fund for the Children's Center remodeling and assumed 510,050 surplus for calendar year 2022,
the amended budget assumed a deficit of 516,170 from operations for the calendar year. However, the actual deficit for the year was 521,783
(rounded) which was an additional deficit $5,613. While it is assumed that the Library Board did approve the additional "designated" expenditures.
the Wisconsin Statutes require that no department shall exceed their budgeted expenditures. As such, the Common Council as part of the year end
2022 resolution increased the budgeted expenditures by 55,613 to comply with the Wisconsin Statutes.

Total Revenue: 60,050.00 100,327.00 72,930.42 6,534.30 27,396.58
217-55110-50499 DEPT DEFICIT 0.00 5,613.00 0.00 0.00 5,613.00
217-55110-50500 DESIGNATED 50,000.00 67,680.00 67,680.19 13,080.16 (0.19)
217-55110-50501 UNDESIGNATED 0.00 814.00 813.65 54.76 0.35

As indicated on the balance sheet, the terms "designated" and "undesignated" are not applicable anymore under GAAP. It is recommended that
more accounts be added to the general ledger to reflect activity. Otherwise, this detail has to be tracked on separate documents.

217-55110-50936 TR OUT - FUND 215 0.00 26,220.00 26,220.44 0.00 (0.44)
This is the transfer to the Library Fund for the Children's Center remodeling.
Total Expenditure: 50,000.00 100,327.00 94,714.28 13,134.92 5,612.72






04/06/2023 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY Baker Tilly has not completed their annual audit for
PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022 calendar year 2022. No material changes to the various
% Fiscal Year Completed: 100.00 Library funds is anticipated as a result of the audit.
Unaudited

2022 YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE
ORIGINAL  Amended 12/31/2022 MONTH 12/31/22 BALANCE
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET Budget NORM (ABNORM) INCR (DECR) NORM (ABNORM)
TOTAL REVENUES 60,050.00 100,327.00 72,930.42 6,534.30 27,396.58
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 50,000.00 100,327.00 94,714.28 13,134.92 5,612.72
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 10,050.00 (21,783.86) (6,600.62) 21,783.86






04/06/2023 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY

GL NUMBER

Month Ended: December

DESCRIPTION

BALANCE
AS OF

Baker Tilly has not completed their annual audit for
calendar year 2022. No material changes to the
various Library funds is anticipated as a result of the

audit.
Unaudited
BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE
AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF

12/31/2018 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022

Fund 217 - LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND

217-00000-48110  INTEREST INCOME 3,599.58  4,901.43  1,125.18 59.76  3,504.06
217-00000-48500  DONATIONS - DESIGNATED 68,260.68 70,801.23 28,981.19 81,360.82  69,426.36
217-00000-48510  DONATIONS - UNDESIGNATED 69.90 39.04 0.00 0.00 0.00
217-00000-48530  DONATIONS -FUNDRAISING ACCOUNT 14,464.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue: 86,394.95 75,741.70 30,106.37 81,420.58  72,930.42
217-55110-50500  DESIGNATED 45,026.38 59,066.67 26,530.35 37,236.45 67,680.19
217-55110-50501  UNDESIGNATED 1,657.43  1,010.42 50.00 300.00 813.65
217-55110-50503  DESIGNATED-FUNDRAISING ACCOUNT 1,319.31  7,853.34 0.00 0.00 0.00
217-55110-50936 TR OUT - FUND 215 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,220.44
Total Expenditure: 48,003.12 67,930.43 26,580.35 37,536.45 94,714.28
TOTAL REVENUES 86,394.95 75,741.70 30,106.37 81,420.58  72,930.42
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 48,003.12 67,930.43 26,580.35 37,536.45 94,714.28
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 38,391.83  7,811.27  3,526.02 43,884.13 (21,783.86)
BEG. FUND BALANCE 194,273.19 232,665.02 240,476.29 244,002.31 287,886.44
|[END FUND BALANCE 232,665.02 240,476.29 244,002.31 287,886.44 266,102.58 |

Five year average of total expenditures
Ending fund balance compared to total annual expenditures (in years)

54,952.93
4.84

What is the intent of the large remaining donations? There has not been any material changes in the balances.





04/06/2023 BUDGET REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY

2021 2022 2022 2023 Annual Budget
ACTIVITY ACTIVITY AMENDED COUNCIL Increase
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Fund 215 - LIBRARY FUND
215-00000-41110 PROPERTY TAX - OPERATIONS 646,350 646,350 726,880

PROPERTY TAX OPERATIONS 646,350 646,350 726,880 80,530 12.5%
215-00000-43330 FED GRANT - COVID-19 11
215-00000-43720 DANE COUNTY SERVICE FEES 249,583 249,897 249,429 249,910
215-00000-43725 OTHER COUNTIES SERVICE FEES 15,848

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 265,431 249,908 249,429 249,910 481 0.2%
215-00000-46110 MISC. REVENUE 2,432
215-00000-46710 LIBRARY FEES 3,237 4,031 6,000 4,000
215-00000-46712 COPY MACHINE 1,390 3,257 3,700 2,500

PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 7,059 7,288 9,700 6,500 (3,200) -33.0%
215-00000-47301 CHARGES TO DANE COUNTY 15,953 15,952 14,979
215-00000-47302 CHARGES TO MUNICIPALITIES 16

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR 15,969 15,952 14,979 (973) -6.1%
215-00000-48110 INTEREST INCOME 13 1,793 1,000
215-00000-48500 DONATIONS 60

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 73 1,793 0 1,000 1,000 0.0%
215-00000-49204 INTRAFUND TRANSFER IN 26,220 26,220
215-00000-49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 632,350
215-00000-49910 FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY 26,739
215-00000-49940 FUND BAL APPLIED - DEFICITS 30,000

FUND BALANCE APPLIED 632,350 26,220 30,000 0 (30,000) -100.0%
Total Revenues 904,913 947,528 1,004,390 999,269 (5,121) -0.5%






04/06/2023

BUDGET REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY

2021 2022 2022 2023
ACTIVITY ACTIVITY AMENDED COUNCIL
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET
215-55110-50110 SALARIES 83,487 86,757 86,766 90,227
215-55110-50120 WAGES 374,355 393,594 408,571 425,417
215-55110-50127 WAGES - PART TIME 62,647 81,128 75,821 77,147
215-55110-50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 3,051 7,974 8,500 8,840
215-55110-50129 WAGES - LONGEVITY 5,338 5,338 7,600
WAGES 523,540 574,791 584,996 609,231

Note: Council Budget reflects the adopted budget and does not include market increases approved by the Council in February 2023.

215-55110-50151
215-55110-50152
215-55110-50153
215-55110-50160
215-55110-50161
215-55110-50163
215-55110-50164
215-55110-50165
BENEFITS

215-55110-50211
215-55110-50212
215-55110-50216
215-55110-50217
215-55110-50220
215-55110-50221
215-55110-50240
215-55110-50250
215-55110-50289
215-55110-50300

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 67,605
HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 97,813
SELF INSURED LOSSES 2,881
FICA TAXES 42,149 44,460 46,606
WRS - GENERAL 29,257 29,466 30,344
HEALTH INSURANCE 105,603 98,197 115,000
DENTAL INSURANCE 4,105 6,776 6,777
LIFE INSURANCE 1,175 1,075 211
165,418 185,170 179,974 198,938
POSTAGE 412 660 500 1,000
TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,113 1,879 1,600 1,600
OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 5901 588 200 200
OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 52 300 300
UTILITIES 17,928 20,920 19,600 21,000
UTILITIES-BUILDING 2 4,760 7,921 5,500 6,000
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,643 2,921 1,900 2,800
REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 10,488 6,695 9,000 9,000
TECHNOLOGY COSTS 52,264 53,048 53,600 56,000
MISC EXPENSES 647 498 500 500

Annual Budget

Increase
(Decrease)

24,235

18,964

4.1%

10.5%





04/06/2023

BUDGET REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY

2021 2022 2022 2023 Annual Budget
ACTIVITY ACTIVITY AMENDED COUNCIL Increase
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

215-55110-50313 PROGRAMS/PUBLICITY 4,445 4,387 4,500 4,500
215-55110-50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 388 150 600 600
215-55110-50326 PERIODICALS 5,639 4,523 5,200 5,400
215-55110-50327 E-RESOURCES 9,145 9,635 9,700 12,000
215-55110-50328 AUDIO VISUAL 15,954 10,520 11,000 9,000
215-55110-50329 BOOKS 50,278 51,256 50,000 50,000
215-55110-50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 6,300 3,587 4,500 5,000
215-55110-50341 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-1 103 57 200 200
215-55110-50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 5,412 6,090 4,800 6,000

OPERATIONAL 187,510 185,387 183,200 191,100 7,900 4.3%
215-55110-50810 CAPITAL-EQUIPMENT 48,171 56,220

Childrens' Area remodeling

CAPITAL OUTLAY 48,171 56,220 0 (56,220) -100.0%
Total Expenditures 876,468 993,519 1,004,390 999,269 (5,121) -0.5%
Annual surplus (deficit 28,445 (45,991) 0 0 0 0.0%






04/06/2023 BUDGET REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY

2021 2022 2022 2023 Annual Budget
ACTIVITY ACTIVITY AMENDED COUNCIL Increase
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Fund 217 - LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
217-00000-48110 INTEREST INCOME 60 3,504 50 1,000
217-00000-48500 DONATIONS - DESIGNATED 81,361 69,426 78,494 60,000

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 81,421 72,930 78,544 61,000 (17,544) -22.3%
217-00000-49910 FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY Surplus budgeted for>>> (10,050) (11,000)
217-00000-49920 FUND BAL APPLIED - TRANSFERS 26,220
217-00000-49940 FUND BAL APPLIED - DEFICITS 5,613

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 21,783 (11,000) (32,783) -150.5%
Total revenues 81,421 72,930 100,327 50,000 (50,327) -50.2%
217-55110-50499 DEPT DEFICIT 5,613
217-55110-50500 DESIGNATED 37,236 67,680 67,680 50,000
217-55110-50501 UNDESIGNATED 300 814 814

OPERATIONAL 37,536 68,494 74,107 50,000 (24,107) -32.5%
217-55110-50936 TR OUT - FUND 215 26,220 26,220

OTHER FINANCING USES 26,220 26,220 0 (26,220) -100.0%
Total expenditures 37,536 94,714 100,327 50,000 (50,327) -50.2%
Annual surplus (deficit 43,885 (21,784) 0 0 0 0.0%






		Library presentation - Ehlinger 04-19-2023.pdf

		Library presentation.pdf




Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton
Tuesday, March 28, 2023 at 5:30 p.m.

The meeting was a hybrid meeting located in the City Council chambers of the Public Safety Building at
321 S. Fourth St as well as concurrently held via Zoom.

Committee members present: Brett Schumacher (Chair}, Greg Jenson (Vice Chair), Leonard “Ozzie”
Doom, Ben Heili {arrived 6:05 pm, remote), Lisa Reeves, Tim Swadiey (Mayor, ex-officio} and David
Thomas {arrived 5:44 p.m.)

Members absent: None

Guests present: Dave Ehiinger and Mark Fischer {Strand Associates)

N

Call to order —Schumacher called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m.
Rofii call and verification of quorum — A quorum was present.
Certification and compliance with open meetings law — Schumacher indicated that the meeting
was properly noticed and posted.
Public comment — Callie LaPoint with Stoughton Visitor Services spoke regarding the topic of
apportionment of room iax revenue.
Communications — Ehlinger indicated that DeWitt LLP Law Firm has completed the Stoughton
Firefighters Pension Trust Agreement and the topic will be on the April 11, 2023 Finance
Committee agenda.
Reports

a. Bank reconciliation 02-28-2023

b. Cash summary by fund 02-28-2023

¢. Check reconciliation report 02-28-2023

d. Journal entry report 02-28-2023

e. Budget amendment report 02-28-2023

f. Receipt register 02-28-2023

g. Revenue / expenditure report — Finance Department 02-28-2023

h. Revenue / expenditure report — Shared Ride Services 02-28-2023

i. Revenue [ expenditure report — General Revenues 02-28-2023

j.  Revenue [/ expenditure report - Redevelopment Autharity 02-28-2023

k. Revenue / expenditure report — City Council 02-28-2023 — Ehlinger indicated that he

had no additional comments other than those already provided in various reports. No
additional questions were raised and the committee indicated that comments on the
documents are appreciated.
Approval of minutes of March 14, 2023 — Motion by Doom/Jenson to approve the minutes as
drafted 5-0.
0O-xx-2023 Amend Section 2-585 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to
apportionment of room tax revenue — Ehlinger recapped the recent history on the ordinance
changes. After general discussion a motion was made by Reeves/Jenson to {a) amend the draft
ordinance to change the city’s retained portion from 30% to 20%, {b) recommend approval of
the amended draft ordinance te the Common Council and (¢} directed Ehlinger to update the
supporting documents to the ordinance for the percentage change. The motion passed 7-0.
Discussion and possible action regarding delinquent room taxes
a. Implementation of estimated gquarterly billing — Ehiinger indicated the process would
entail more work for the Finance Department and would not necessarily speed up the






10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

collection process. By general consensus, this option was not chosen.

h. Implementation of required deposit — After discussion, the general consensus was to
pursue a contractual agreement with Tru by Hilton as part of the Forward Development
Group rezoning request for a $25,000 deposit for offsetting against future delinquent
room taxes, penalties and interest.

¢. Withholding of liquor license — General discussion occurred regarding whether the
liquor license crdinance could potentially be revised to invalidate a license due to
delinquent room taxes.

R-048-2023 Amend 2022 adopted budget for departmental deficits — Ehlinger recapped the
statutory requirement for the resolution. General discussion occurred. Motion by
Reeves/lenson to recommend approval to the Common Council for the resolution as drafted.
The motion passed 7-0.

R-050-2023 Street Pulverization Project Contract 2-2023 — Fisher (Strand Associates) spoke on
the bids received and the project. Motion by Reeves/Doom to recommend approval to the
Common Council as drafted. The moticn passed 7-0.

R-051-2023 North St & Bickley Ct Reconstruction Contract 2-2023 — Fisher spoke on the bids
received on the project, that the bids came in higher than expected and that Stoughton Utilities
was still evaluating whether their budget could support the increased charges. Fischer
recommended the resolution be postponed at the Council meeting until the April 11*" Council
meeting. Motion by Jenson/Reeves to (a) recommend approval to the Common Council
contingent upon Stoughton Utilities approval and {b) recommend the Common Council
postpone this resolution to their April 11" meeting. The motion passed 7-0.

R-052-2023 Jackson St Reconstruction Project Contract 3-2023 — Fischer spoke on the bids
received and the project. Motion by Reeves/fenson to recommend approval to the Common
Council as drafted. The motion passed 7-0.

R-053-2023 Adopt Tax Incremental Finance (TIF) application and update related TIF policy -
Reeves brought up that some sections of the TiF policy from August 2020 were not included in
the policy included in the packet. Motion by Reeves/lenson to tabie this topic untif the April
11" Finance Committee agenda.

R-054-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for Diversity, inclusion and Equity Task Force
strategic pfan - Motion by Doom/Jenson to recommend approval to the Common Council as
drafted. The motion passed 7-0.

R-049-2023 Write off 2021-2022 delinquent persanal property tax bills — Motion by
Jenson/Reeves to recommend approval to the Common Council as drafted. The motion passed
7-0.

Future agenda items

a. 04/25/2023 — March 2023 financial reports

h. To be determined — Creation and/or modification of city policies

i. Future treatment of costs eligible for special assessments
ii. Future treatment of interest rate on special assessments
iii. Meal reimbursement rate indexed to IRS rate
iv. Amendment to investment policy and authorized depositories
v. Updates to fund balance policy
vi. Potential revisions of Capital improvement Plan and Debt Management policy
vii, Creation of debt collection policy
vili. Update policy regarding disposal of property
ix. Development of fund balance policy specific to K-9 Fund
c. To be determined — Creation and/or modification of Tax Incremental Districts





i. Boundary amendment for Tax Incremental District #6 — Business Park
Expansion
ii. New Tax Incremental District activity for Stoughton Trailers
fii. Creation of overlay downtown Tax Incremental District — No additional items
were reguested.
18. Adjourn — Motion by Jenson/Reeves to adjourn at 6:58 p.m. The motion passed 7-0.

Respectfully submitted,

SN/

David P, Ehlinger, CPA
Director of Finance/Comptroller
City of Stoughton







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Adopt Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) application and update related TIF policy

Committee Finance Committee recommended approval  on 04/11/2023
Action:

Fiscal Impact: None TIME SENSITIVE ITEMS

File Number: R-xxx-2023 Date 4/11/2023

The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton requires that detailed application be submitted when
requesting Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) funds from the City; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has not updated their application in several years but
expressed an interest to do so; and,

WHEREAS, the City Attorney offered an application developed for a neighboring
community as a starting point; and,

WHEREAS, input was received from the City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority and
the Plan Commission of the City of Stoughton for proposed changes to the TIF application; and,

WHEREAS, the City Attorney has updated the City’s TIF policy to include the proposed
changes to the TIF application; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee has reviewed the attached TIF
application at their meeting on April 11, 2023 and recommends approval of the application;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the attached TIF application is hereby
approved for any applications effective April 12, 2023; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the updated TIF policy which is also attached is
hereby approved effective April 12, 2023.

Council Action: |:|Ad0pted |:| Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: |:|Accept I:I Veto

Mayor Tim Swadley Date
Council Action: |:| Override Vote







; City of Stoughton
i-%w Tax Incremental Financing Application
: H}:‘S'

Please complete this application, along with such additional documentation and information you wish to supplement this
application.

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Name:

Mailing Address:

Phone: Email:

Legal Entity (check one): Individual(s) Corporation LLC Partnership

Other:

If not a Wisconsin corporation / partnership / LLC, state where organized:

Will a new entity be created for ownership (check one)? Yes No

Principals of existing or proposed corporation / partnership / LLC and extent of ownership interests (add more
pages, if necessary):

Name Address Title Interest
DEVELOPMENT TEAM
Developer: Architect:
Surveyor: Contractor:

Other Members (add more pages, if necessary):

Describe the Applicant and Development Team’s background, expertise, and experience in developing similar
projects:

Format approved 03/28/2023 R-xxx-2023






CITY GOALS OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING

The City has established goals for the use of tax incremental financing. Please indicate which goals you believe
the proposed project advances. Select all that apply. [f checked as applicable, please describe in further detail
how the goal will be achieved.

O

Whether the proposed tax increment district or project assists in the implementation of the City’s

Comprehensive Plan. Please describe:

Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would eliminate blight, redevelop underused lands, or

provide suitable sites for industrial, commercial or residential development. Please describe

Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase employment opportunities. Please

describe

Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase the property tax base. Please describe

Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase the availability of a range of workforce

housing options, including affordable housing. Please describe

Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would include sustainability measures that will promote

a healthy environment, including measures to reduce climate change impacts. Please describe

Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would encourage unsubsidized private development.

Please describe






PROJECT AND PROPERTY INFORMATION

Address and / or Parcel Number(s) of proposed development:

Overall Project Summary and Objectives (include information describing the current and proposed zoning and uses of the
site; description of end users; estimated jobs created; anticipated value created; consistency with TID project plan, City
Comprehensive Plan, zoning ordinance, subdivision ordinance, and other City ordinances and policies as applicable;
whether there has been or will be outreach to the public or neighborhood):

For a project that contains housing, describe whether the project would increase the availability of a range of workforce
housing options, including affordable housing. If the project will not increase the availability of affordable housing, explain

why it does not, and explain whether the project could include affordable housing if the City provides additional TIF support.

Describe whether the project would include sustainability measures that will promote a healthy environment, including

measures to reduce climate change impacts.






Describe the request for tax increment financing.

“BUT FOR” TEST

Why is the requested TIF funding needed? Explain why the project cannot proceed without such support? In addition,
provide a complete description of the sources and uses of funding for the project. If land will be purchased for the project,
please describe the purchase price, and supply any appraisal or other documentation available that provides information
relating to the fair market value of the property. If you are paying more than fair market value for the property, please
explain why.

What economic benefits will result due to the development?






What non-economic benefits will the development provide to the community?

FILING REQUIREMENTS

You must provide all the following items with your signed application:
e Reimbursement Agreement: Provide a signed Reimbursement Agreement in the form approved by the City.
e Site Map: Provide a map that shows the location of the site and its immediate surroundings.

e Project Renderings: Provide preliminary architectural drawings, plans, and renderings for the project.

e Analysis of Financial Need: Each application must include financial analyses that demonstrate the need for TIF
assistance, including project budgets, proformas describing sources and uses of funds, and revenue projections.

e Project Timeline: An outline of the timeline envisioned for the project to completion.

The City may require additional documentation, including but not limited to market studies, appraisals, and / or other
documents.

AGREEMENT

By signing this application, Applicant agrees to the following:

e The information submitted is correct.
e [ understand that the City reserves the right to approve or not approve this application, in the City’s sole discretion.

Applicant Printed Name Applicant Title

Applicant Signature Date












4.

City of Stoughton Policy
for the Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts
and the Approval of TIF Projects.

Approved by the Common Council on ,2023

Purpose. This policy has been prepared to assist the City in determining whether
to create a Tax Incremental Finance District, and in determining whether to
approve the use of Tax Incremental Financing for particular projects. The
authority to approve the use of Tax Incremental Financing is vested solely in the
City Council. The City reserves the right to reject any and all projects, including
projects that are eligible for the use of Tax Incremental Financing, for any reason
or no reason. The City Council reserves the right to approve or disapprove any
project as it deems appropriate.

General Goals for the use of Tax Incremental Financing. The City may consider
whether a TIF District or a TIF project serves one or more of the following general
goals when deciding whether to create a TIF District, or whether to provide TIF
financing for a particular project:

A. Eliminate blighting influences, redevelop underutilized lands, and provide
suitable sites for industrial, commercial or residential development.
B. Achieve or accelerate development on sites that would not be developed

without the use of Tax Incremental Financing.

Increase employment opportunities in the City.

Increase the tax base for the City and other taxing jurisdictions.

Assists implementation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

Provide workforce and affordable housing opportunities.

Includes sustainability measures that will promote a healthy environment,
including measures to reduce climate change impacts.

G-H. Encourage unsubsidized private development in the City.

Ommg o

TIF District Creation.

A. TIF Districts will be created in accordance with the procedures and
standards in Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, and as such statute may be amended.
(See Appendix A - Department of Revenue TIF Creation Checklist).

B. The City Council may, in individual cases, expand the process for creating
a TIF District in such manner as it deems appropriate.

TIF Project Approval. All TIF projects must be approved by the City Council,
following review and report by the Finance Committee. The Finance Director

T2PACKETS\FINANCE\2023\04-11-2023\Backup material\3XA6961-## TIF Policy (2 24)
DN39A3884.docx

3/30/2023 10:14 AM





shall provide a report to the Finance Committee and the City Council addressing
the following issues, which shall be considered by the Finance Committee and
City Council before approving any TIF project:

A. Is the project authorized by the Project Plan for the TIF District?

B. Does the project serve one or more of the City’s general goals for the use of
TIF?

C. Is Tax Incremental Financing feasible, in that the TIF District will support
the level of TIF investment?

D. Is the amount of Tax Increment Financing requested reasonably necessary
to make the project financially viable?
E. Should a development agreement be required, and what terms should be

included in the agreement?

F. Is more process (such as additional public hearings or a referendum)
appropriate?

G. Will the potential developer’s equity in the project exceed 10 %?

H. Will the ratio of equity to assistance be at least equal (1 X Equity = or >
Assistance)?

L. Such other factors as either the Finance Committee or the City Council
deem appropriate.

5. Permissive Referendum. Before the City may issue bonds or otherwise borrow

funds that will be payable over more than 10 years to fund a TIF project, the City
Council must first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to borrow the funds. If a
number of electors of the city equal to at least 15% of the of the votes cast for
governor at the last general election in the city sign and file a petition conforming
to the requirements of Wis. Stat. § 8.40 with the city clerk requesting submission
of the resolution, the City may not issue bonds or borrow funds for financing the
TIF project without calling a special election to submit the question of bonding or
borrowing to the city electors for their approval.

6. Negotiations. City staff and the city attorney will negotiate development
agreements within the parameters established by the City Council, and subject to
final approval by the City Council.

It should be noted that “pay-as-you-go” is the preferred TIF financing mechanism
of the City Council to help reduce the financial exposure of the City. Under this
financing method the developer pays the upfront costs of the project. The City
would then establish the criterial to fully or partially reimburse the developer using
future tax increment.

T2PACKETS\FINANCE\2023\04-11-2023\Backup material\3XA6961-## TIF Policy (2 24)
DN39A3884.docx

3/30/2023 10:14 AM





7. Suspension of Policy. This policy shall be followed in all cases, except where the
common council approves deviating from this policy by a vote of two-thirds of all
members of the common council.

T2PACKETS\FINANCE\2023\04-11-2023\Backup material\3XA6961-## TIF Policy (2 24)
DN39A3884.docx

3/30/2023 10:14 AM






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Creation of irrevocable fiduciary trust fund for Stoughton Firefighters Pension Fund

Committee Fireman’s Pension Board recommend approval 6-0 on 04/06/2023
Action: Finance Committee recommended approval on 04/11/2023
Fiscal Impact: Increased expenditures of $908,809

File Number: R-xxx-2023 Date 4/25/2023

The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton authorized staff to begin the
process of creating an irrevocable fiduciary trust for the City of Stoughton single-employer pension
plan for the volunteer firefighters and their spouses on January 10, 2023 with R-006-2023; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton contracted with DeWitt Law Firm, LLP on February
3, 2023 for the creation of the Stoughton Firefighters Pension Trust Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, DeWitt Law Firm, LLP provided the attached Stoughton Firefighters Pension
Trust Agreement which has been reviewed by both the Director of Finance/Comptroller and the
City Attorney before the attached document was considered final; and,

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends that the name of the
Fireman’s Pension Board be changed to Firefighters Pension Board; and

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends transferring all
Firefighters Pension Fund activity from Fund 243 Fire Pension Fund to newly created Fund 805
Fire Pension Fund for compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
84 — Fiduciary Activities; and,

WHEREAS, Fund 243 Fire Pension Fund had a fund balance of $905,504 as of December
31, 2022 that requires a budget amendment for transferring the fund balance to the newly created
fiduciary fund; and

WHEREAS, the adopted budget for Fund 243 Fire Pension Fund has authorized
expenditures of $48,700 that requires a budget amendment to move these expenditures to the newly
created fiduciary fund; and,

WHEREAS, the Fireman’s Pension Board recommended approval of the attached
Stoughton Firefighters Pension Trust Agreement as well as changing the name of the Fireman’s
Pension Board to the Firefighters Pension Board at their meeting on April 6, 2023;





NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council authorizes both the
Director of Finance/Comptroller and Mayor to sign the attached Stoughton Firefighters Pension
Trust Agreement for the creation on an irrevocable fiduciary trust for the City of Stoughton single-
employer pension plan for the volunteer firefighters and their spouses; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2023 budget is hereby amended to increase total

expenditures by $908,809 as per the table below; and

Account
Number

Account
Description

Special Revenue Fund

243-52200-49920
243-52200-59740
243-52200-43420
243-52200-48110
243-52200-48199
243-52200-50130
243-52200-50404
Fiduciary Fund
805-52200-43420
805-52200-48110
805-52200-49740
805-52200-49920
243-52200-50130
243-52200-50211
243-52200-50400
243-52200-50404
Totals

Fund balance applied - transfers
Fund closure transfer

Fire insurance rebate

Interest income

Investment market adjustment
Fire pension benefit

Actuarial fees

Fire insurance rebate
Interestincome

Fund closure transfer

Fund balance applied - transfers
Fire pension benefit

Postage

Outside legal services

Actuarial fees

Revenues
Increase Decrease

Expenditures
Increase Decrease

905,504
905,504
(43,600)
(10,000)
4,900
(42,000)
(6,700)
43,600
40,000
905,504
(937,099)
42,000
5
10,000
6,700
908,809 908,809

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the name of the Fireman’s Pension Board be changed
to the Firefighters Pension Board.

Budget amendments require approval by eight (8) members elected.

Council Action: |:| Adopted |:| Failed Vote
Mayoral Action: |:| Accept I:I Veto

Mayor Tim Swadley Date

Council Action: |:| Override Vote







STOUGHTON FIREFIGHTERS PENSION TRUST AGREEMENT

This Trust Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the City of Stoughton,
Wisconsin (the “City”), and David P. Ehlinger, the current City Director of Finance/Comptroller
(the “Trustee”), effective April 25, 2023.

Since 1911, the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin (the “City”), has maintained a fund (“Fund”) to
provide pensions for its eligible firefighters and their surviving spouses under a plan set forth in
certain rules and regulations (“Pension Plan”).

The Pension Plan is a “governmental plan” as defined in section 3(32) of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) and is, accordingly, as provided in ERISA
section 4(b)(1), exempt from Title I of ERISA.

According to the City’s financial records, as of December 31, 2022, the Fund balance was
$905,504, consisting of cash and liquid investments allocated to “Fund 243 Fire Pension Fund.”

To help ensure that the Fund has sufficient assets to pay liabilities under the Pension Plan, the
City periodically obtains an actuarial valuation report of the liabilities.

As recited in a resolution of the City’s Common Council on January 10, 2023, current
accounting and actuarial standards do not allow the inclusion of the cash and investments in the
actuarial valuation report, because they are not held within an irrevocable trust.

The City wishes to (a) establish an irrevocable trust to hold cash and investments for payment of
liabilities and expenses under the Pension Plan, (b) transfer to the trust the current balance of the
Fund, and (c) have the City Director of Finance/Comptroller be the trustee of the assets in the
trust.

The Trustee is willing to receive, hold, and invest the assets of the Trust in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement and to accept the responsibilities and discharge the duties imposed on
the Trustee under this Agreement.

The City and the Trustee accordingly agree as follows:

Section 1: Creation of Trust. By execution of this Agreement, the City hereby establishes the
Stoughton Firefighters Pension Trust (the “Trust”) to hold and administer the Fund and provide a
source of money to pay the promised benefits under the Pension Plan and related expenses.

Section 2: Trustee. The City hereby designates the City Director of Finance/Comptroller to be
the Trustee of the Trust. The individual who is the City Director of Finance/Comptroller from
time to time (or his or her successor), including any interim Director of Finance/Comptroller ,
shall automatically be the Trustee of the Trust. An individual who ceases to be the City Director
of Finance/Comptroller shall automatically cease to be the Trustee of the Trust.

Section 3: Irrevocability of Trust. The Trust is irrevocable.






Section 4: Transfers to Trust. The City shall deposit with the Trustee, to hold and administer
according to the provisions of the Pension Plan and this Agreement, the entire current balance of
the Fund. The Trustee shall accept all deposits and contributions of cash or liquid investments
made by the City with respect to the Pension Plan. The Trustee shall also accept contributions
from firefighters, such as dues remitted to the Trust fund. The Trustee may accept money or
property from sources other than those described in this section, so long as acceptance from any
such other source is permitted by law. The Trustee shall hold, manage, and administer the Trust
fund without distinction between principal and income. The Trustee shall be accountable for the
money or other property the Trustee receives, but shall not be responsible for the collection of
any deposits, contributions, remittances, or transfers due to the Trust.

Section 5: No Diversion. The assets of the Trust can be used only for purposes of paying
benefits under the Pension Plan and related expenses. At no time shall any part of the corpus or
income of the Trust fund be used for or diverted to purposes other than funding benefits under
the Pension Plan or payment of reasonable costs of administration of the Trust and the Pension
Plan.

Section 6: No Guarantee. Nothing contained in the Trust or the Pension Plan shall constitute a
guarantee that the assets of the Trust fund will be sufficient to pay benefits to any person or make
any other payment. This Agreement creates no obligation for the City to deposit or remit any
amount to the Trust fund.

Section 7: Payments from the Trust Fund. The Trustee shall make payments from the Trust
fund to pay benefits under the Pension Plan as directed by City or its designee. To the extent
permitted by law, the Trustee shall (a) be fully protected in making payments out of the Trust
fund; (b) have no responsibility to see to the application of such payments or to ascertain whether
such payments comply with the terms of the Pension Plan; and (c) not be liable for any payment
made by the Trustee in good faith and in the exercise of reasonable care without actual notice or
knowledge of the impropriety of such payments hereunder. The Trustee may withhold all or any
part of any payment as the Trustee (in the exercise of the Trustee’s reasonable discretion) may
deem necessary to protect the Trustee and the Trust against any liability or claim on account of
any income tax imposed on a firefighter or surviving spouse and may discharge any such tax
liability with such withheld amount.

Section 8: Method of Payments. Unless directed otherwise by the City or its designee, the
Trustee may make any payment required to be made by the Trustee under this Agreement by
direct electronic deposit, electronic funds transfer, or any other similar appropriate manner to the
financial institution where the person to whom or to which such payment is to be made maintains
an account or by mailing a check in the amount thereof to such person to whom such payment is
to be made. If any dispute arises as to the identity or rights of persons who may be entitled to
benefits hereunder, the Trustee may withhold payment until such dispute is resolved by a court
of competent jurisdiction or, at the discretion of the City, is settled by written stipulation of the
parties concerned.

Section 9: Excessive Payments. If the Trustee or the City determines that any payment under
the Trust or the Pension Plan is excessive or improper, the recipient shall make repayment






thereof immediately following receipt of written notice from the Trustee or the Trustee’s agent.
If the recipient fails to make repayment to the Trustee or Trustee’s agent of such excessive or
improper payment by the date requested by the Trustee or the Trustee’s agent, the Trustee may
deduct the amount of such excessive or improper payment from any other amounts thereafter
payable to such person or may pursue repayment. Until repaid to the Trustee or Trustee’s agent,
the amount of said excessive or improper payment shall not be included in the Trust fund.

Section 10: Unclaimed Benefit Payments. If any check or other payment of a benefit hereunder
has been mailed by regular U.S. mail to the last address of the payee furnished to the Trustee by
the City is returned unclaimed, the Trustee shall notify the City and shall discontinue further
payments to such payee until it receives further instructions of the City.

Section 11: Trust Accounting. The Trustee shall keep accurate and detailed records of all
investments, receipts, disbursements, and all other transactions required to be made.

Section 12: Responsibility of Trustee. The Trustee shall act with the care, skill, prudence and
diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in like capacity
and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and
with like aims, provided, however, that the Trustee shall incur no liability to any person for any
action taken pursuant to a direction, request, or approval given by the City which is contemplated
by, and in conformity with, the terms of the Pension Plan. The Trustee may consult with legal
counsel (who may also be counsel for the City generally) with respect to any of the Trustee’s
duties or obligations under this Agreement. If the Trustee undertakes or defends any litigation
arising in connection with the Trust, the City will indemnify the Trustee against the Trustee's
costs, expenses and liabilities (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees and expenses)
relating to that litigation.

Section 13: Powers of Trustee. The Trustee shall have, without exclusion, all powers conferred
on trustees by applicable law. The powers shall expressly include the power to:

(a) Hold cash in interest-bearing on non-interest-bearing accounts, bonds, stocks, mutual
investment funds, or other investments permitted by applicable law, including accounts at
commercial financial institutions or the Wisconsin Investment Fund;

(b) Sell, redeem, or exchange any property in the Trust fund,

(c) Employ, for the benefit of the Trust fund, suitable agents, actuaries, accountants,
investment counselors, legal counsel, and consultants and to pay their reasonable expenses
and compensation;

(d) Begin, maintain, or defend any litigation necessary in connection with the administration
of the Trust, except that the Trustee shall not be obligated or required to do so unless the
Trustee has been indemnified to the Trustee’s satisfaction against expenses and liabilities;

(e) Settle, compromise, or submit to arbitration any claims, debts, or damages to or owing to
or from the Trust fund; and





() Do all acts which the Trustee may deem necessary or proper to exercise any and all
powers of the Trustee under this Agreement

Section 14: Determination of Rights. The Trustee shall have no power, authority, or duty under
this Agreement in respect to the determination of the eligibility of any person for coverage under
the Pension Plan or the entitlement of any person to benefits or payments from the Pension Plan.

Section 15: Trustee Compensation. The Trustee shall be paid no compensation from the Trust
for services under this Agreement. Nevertheless, the Trustee shall be reimbursed by the City for
any reasonable expenses, including reasonable counsel, actuarial, and accounting fees, incurred
by the Trustee in the administration of the Trust fund.

Section 16: Accounting Year. The accounting year of the Trust shall be the same as the City’s
fiscal year.

Section 17: Tax-Exempt Status. Because the provision of pension benefits to volunteer
firefighters is an “essential governmental function” as that term is used in Internal Revenue Code
(“Code”) section 115, the Trust income is exempt from federal income taxes as described in
Code section 115 and the Trust is not required by Code section 6012(a)(4) to file a federal
income tax return.

Section 18: Amendment. Any or all of the provisions of this Agreement may be amended at any
time and from time to time, in whole or in part, by an instrument in writing. No such amendment
shall authorize or permit any part of the Trust fund (other than such part as is required to pay
taxes and administration expenses) to be used for or diverted to purposes other than for the
exclusive benefit of individuals covered by the Pension Plan. No such amendment shall cause or
permit any portion of the Trust fund to revert to or become the property of the City. No
amendment that affects the rights or duties of the Trustee may be made without the Trustee’s
written consent.

Section 19: Termination. This Trust Agreement may be terminated at any time by the City, and
upon such termination, after payment of benefits accrued under the Pension Plan to the time of
termination, any balance in the Trust fund shall be paid out by the Trustee as and when directed
by the City, in accordance with the terms of the Pension Plan and applicable law. In no event
may any amounts be returned to the City.

Section 20: Limited Effect of Plan and Trust. Neither the establishment of the Pension Plan nor
the Trust nor any modification thereof, nor the creation of any fund or account, nor the payment
of any benefits under the Pension Plan, shall be construed as giving to any person any legal or
equitable right against the Trustee, the City, or any officer or employee thereof, except as may
otherwise be provided in the Pension Plan or in this Agreement.

Section 21: Severability of Provisions. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited by
law shall be ineffective to the extent of any such prohibition, without invalidating the remaining
provisions of this Agreement.






Section 22: Non-Assignability. Benefits payable to firefighters or surviving spouses under this
Agreement may not be anticipated, assigned (either at law or in equity), alienated, pledged,
encumbered, or subjected to attachment, garnishment, levy, execution, or other legal or equitable
process.

Section 23: Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Wisconsin.

CITY OF STOUGHTON

By: Date:
Tim Swadley, Mayor

TRUSTEE

Date:
David P.. Ehlinger, City Director of Finance/Comptroller







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Creation of irrevocable fiduciary trust fund for Firefighters Pension Fund

Committee Fireman’s Pension Board recommended approval 6-0 on 11/21/22
Action: Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 12/13/2022
Fiscal Impact: To be determined

File Number: R-06-2023 Date 1/10/2023

The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has maintained a single-employer pension fund for
volunteer firefighters and their spouses since before 1983; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 73 (GASB 73) Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related

Assets That Are Not within the Scope of Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of
GASB Statements 67 and 68, and,

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton contracts with Milliman, Inc. to perform required
actuarial studies in relation to GASB 73 for its single-employer pension fund; and,

WHEREAS, the GASB 73 Disclosure Statement for Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022 as
prepared by Milliman, Inc. indicated a Total Pension Liability of $1,239,426; and,

WHEREAS, the audited financial statements for the City of Stoughton as prepared by
Baker Tilly US, LLP indicate that the Fireman’s Pension Fund has cash and investments at
December 31, 2021 of $904,009 held within that Special Revenue Fund; and,

WHEREAS, these cash and investments are the result of life-to-date restricted revenue
sources including:

e 2% Fire Dues received from the State of Wisconsin fo wholly or partially fund
fire fighters’ pension funds or special funds for the benefit of disabled or
superannuated fire fighters,

e Payroll deductions from current volunteers for their required contribution to the
single-employer pension fund, and,

e Investment earnings on these restricted revenue sources; and,

WHEREAS, annual pension payments, actuarial fees and other administrative charges
are offset against the restricted revenues listed above resulting in a Restricted Fund Balance of
$904,009 as of December 31, 2021 for the Special Revenue Fund of Fireman’s Pension Fund;





and,

WHEREAS, current accounting and actuarial standards do not allow the inclusion of these
cash and investment accounts in the actuarial valuation because they are not held within an
irrevocable trust; and,

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends the creation of an
irrevocable fiduciary trust for the City of Stoughton’s Firefighters Pension Fund; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Fireman’s Pension Board approved going forwaid
with the creation of an irrevocable trust for the city’s single-employer firefighter pension fund at
their November 21, 2022 meeting;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Finance/Comptroller and
Fire Chief are hereby authorized to begin the process of creating an irrevocable fiduciary trust for
the City of Stoughton single-employer pension plan for the volunteer firefighters and their spouses;
and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Director of Finance/Comptroller and Fire Chief
shall work with Milliman, Inc, Baker Tiily US, LLP and Stafford Rosenbaum, LLP in the creation
of said irrevocable fiduciary trust in order to be in compliance with all actuarial, governmental
accounting and legal requirements for said irrevocable fiduciary trust; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Finance Committee shall be
the committee responsible for oversight on the creation of the irrevocable fiduciary trust; and,

BEIT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Common Council for the City of Stoughton shall
have the final approval of the creation of the itrevocable fiduciary trust once finalized by all parties
involved.

Fiscal note: Fees charged by the above vendors are unknown at this time but will be recorded in
Fund 243 Fireman’s Pension Fund.

Council Action: Iﬁ&dopted D Failed Vote t l _ /O

O, O

Mayor Tim Swadley Date

Council Action: D Override VYote






Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services
Division of Industry Services

4822 Madison Yards Way

PO Box 7302

Madison WI 53707-7302

Phone: 608-266-2112
Web: http://dsps.wi.gov
Email: dsps@wisconsin.gov

Email: dsps@wi.gov
Phone: 608-261-2112

2% Fire Dues uses Fax: 608-283-7404

No city, village or town maintaining a fire department under this section may use any
dues received under s. 101.573 and this section for any purpose except the direct
provision of the following:

1. The purchase of fire protection equipment.

2. Fire inspection and public education.

3. Training of fire fighters and fire inspectors performing duties under s. 101.14.

4. To fund wholly or partially fire fighters' pension funds or other special funds for the
benefit of disabled or superannuated fire fighters.

(b) Any city, village or town that contracts for fire protection service shall give dues
received under s. 101.573 and this section to the fire department providing the fire
protection service. That fire department shall use those dues for any of the purposes
specified in par. (a).

Explanation of what can be purchased:

1. Fire Protection Equipment: fire trucks, brush trucks, tenders, ladders, hose, turnout
gear, helmets, boots, gloves, etc., thermal imaging cameras, foam, axes, nozzles, fans,
and any equipment used to supplement fire suppression. The money can also be held
in a reserve account for a number of years in order to accumulate enough money to
purchase a vehicle or used to pay the balance on a recently purchased vehicle.

2. The 2% dues can be expended on fire inspection services (e.g. wages and benefits,
contracting for fire inspection services, etc.) or for other fire education services or
equipment. Equipment may include brochures, pamphlets, technical aids such as
laptops, tablets and software used for inspection activities, uniforms, and business
cards

3. Training of fire fighters and fire inspectors performing fire inspection or fire education
activities duties under s. 101.14. Training may include fees, memberships, lodging,
books, wages, and travel.

4. Municipalities can also use the 2% dues to supplement retirement programs such as
the Wisconsin Service Awards Program or other approved retirement program
sponsored by the local municipality. Approved means state approved.



http://dsps.wi.gov/

mailto:dsps@wisconsin.gov

http://docs.legis.wi.gov/document/statutes/101.573

http://docs.legis.wi.gov/document/statutes/101.14

http://docs.legis.wi.gov/document/statutes/101.573

http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.575(6)(a)

http://docs.legis.wi.gov/document/statutes/101.14



Dave Ehlinger

From: Jack Chmielewski <jack.chmielewski@milliman.com>

Sent: Thursday, December 1, 2022 4:49 PM

To: Dave Ehlinger

Subject: RE: Milliman - Creation of irrevocable fiduciary trust fund for Firefighters Pension Fund

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking
links, especially from unknown senders.

Hi Dave,

Sorry for the delay in getting back to you. | have read through the draft resolution and from an actuarial point of view
(non-legal!l), I think everything looks good. A couple of thoughts:

- The liability calculated in the report was calculated based on a 2.06% discount rate. Rates are currently around
3.72%. Our report has some sensitivity where you could see the impact that change would have on your liability.

- You will want to create an investment policy statement.

- Based on the current asset value and liabilities, the discount rate going forward would be based on the expected
return on assets of the Trust. This may or may not impact your asset allocation.

- You will want to discuss if benefit payments are paid out of the trust.

- We will most likely need to move to annual reporting since we would use actual asset value (vs. one report every
two years including results for two fiscal years).

That’s all that comes to mind right now. Let me know if you would like to discuss.

Jack Chmielewski, FSA, EA, MAAA
Principal and Consulting Actuary

Milliman
17335 Golf Parkway, Suite 100
Brookfield, WI 53045 USA

+1 262 796 3379 Office
+1 414 305 4226 Cell

milliman.com | email

From: Dave Ehlinger <DEhlinger@ci.stoughton.wi.us>

Sent: Wednesday, November 23, 2022 8:57 AM

To: Jack Chmielewski <jack.chmielewski@milliman.com>

Subject: Milliman - Creation of irrevocable fiduciary trust fund for Firefighters Pension Fund

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Milliman. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Jack,





Attached is my draft resolution for the City of Stoughton to consider creating a fiduciary trust for our GASB 73 pension
plan.

| anticipate the process, once approved, should be completed before year end 2023.

From an actuarial point of view, is there anything that should be changed on the draft resolution? Also, is there
anything that we should consider during this process?

Thanks,
Dave

David P. Ehlinger, CPA
Director of Finance/Comptroller
City of Stoughton

207 S. Forrest St.

Stoughton, WI 53589

Desk (608) 873-6691

Cell (608) 719-2161

City Hall (608) 873-6677

Fax (608) 873-5519
DEhlinger@ci.stoughton.wi.us
www.ci.stoughton.wi.us

3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k sk 3k 3k 5k 3k 3k k >k >k 3k 3k 3k %k >k 3k 3k 3k 3k %k %k 3k 3k 3k 3k %k %k 3%k 5k 3k %k %k %k 3k 3k 3k %k %k %k 3k 3k %k %k %k %k %k 3k %k %k %k kK kkkk

This communication is intended solely for the addressee and is confidential. If you

are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken
or omitted to be taken in reliance on it, is prohibited and may be unlawful. Unless
indicated to the contrary: it does not constitute professional advice or opinions upon
which reliance may be made by the addressee or any other party, and it should be

considered to be a work in progress.
sk %k 5k % ok 5k % 5k % ok 5k % 5k 3k %k ok % 5k 3k %k 5k % 5k 3k %k ok % 5k 3k %k 5k % 5k 5k % 5k % %k 5k % 5k %k %k 5k % 5k %k %k ok % ok %k %k ok %k Kk ok ok ok kkkkkk





Dave Ehlinger

From: Jansen, Andrea <Andrea.Jansen@bakertilly.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 29, 2022 4:07 PM

To: Dave Ehlinger

Cc: Joshi, Vasvi; Shavlik, Ryan

Subject: RE: Baker Tilly - Creation of irrevocable fiduciary trust fund for Firefighters Pension Fund

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links,
especially from unknown senders.

Hi Dave —

Thanks for the email. | agree that the newly created trust will end up as a Defined Benefit Pension trust fund (fiduciary
fund type) under GASB 84. I'm not sure that a restatement would be required — it seems that the assets would be paid
over to the newly created entity at the time of creation essentially closing out the special revenue fund at that time.

The Net Pension Liability would continue to be recorded in the governmental activities as it has in the past. In theory, the
liability will be less once the trust is created given that the assets can be now be applied against the total liability.

One thing that | have seen cause confusion in the past with a transition such as this is that the City is reporting the
pension liability with a one-year lag for the measurement date. | believe that the Plan reporting will need to be measured
consistently with the year-end date presented. So if the trust is created in 2023, the 2023 financial statements will need to
show the fiduciary pension trust based on a 12/31/23 measurement date for your actuarial report, while the information
used to report the City’s related pension liability will actually be using the one-year lag measurement date (12-31-2022)
that has already been established. Therefore, the impact of the trust to the City’s governmental activities won’t happen
until the 2024 financial statements when you use the 12/31/23 measurement date for the net pension liability. Let me
know if you want to talk through this on a call.

In case it is helpful, here are some links to ACFRs for the City of Sun Prairie and City of West Bend. The City of Sun
Prairie has a Pension Trust fund for the Sun Prairie Utilities (among a handful of other plans). The City of West Bend has
an OPEB Trust — not quite the same, but the accounting/reporting is similar.

City-of-Sun-Prairie-12-31-2021-FS-FINAL (cityofsunprairie.com)

Microsoft Word - (FR) City Footnotes (revize.com)

Again, let me know if there are any follow up questions.
Thanks!

Andrea Jansen, CPA, CFE (she/her/hers)
Partner

Baker Tilly US, LLP

T: +1 (608) 240 2338 | M: +1 (920) 285 0733

From: Dave Ehlinger <DEhlinger@ci.stoughton.wi.us>

Sent: Wednesday, November 23, 2022 9:03 AM

To: Jansen, Andrea <Andrea.Jansen@bakertilly.com>; Joshi, Vasvi <Vasvi.Joshi@bakertilly.com>; Shavlik, Ryan
<Ryan.Shavlik@bakertilly.com>

Subject: Baker Tilly - Creation of irrevocable fiduciary trust fund for Firefighters Pension Fund

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe.






Andrea, Vasvi, and Ryan,

Attached is my draft resolution for the City of Stoughton to create a fiduciary trust for our GASB 73 single employer
pension plan.

| would anticipate, once approved, that this task would be completed before year end 2023.
Are there any considerations that we should take into account during this process?

| also have some specific questions regarding accounting standards and financial statements.
e GASB 84 -Is my understanding correct that we will have to restate the Fireman’s Pension Fund from a Special
Revenue Fund to a Fiduciary Fund?
e GASB 73 — My understanding is that Fiduciary Funds still use modified accrual accounting. Where would the
resulting Net Pension Liability be recorded?

Thanks,
Dave

David P. Ehlinger, CPA
Director of Finance/Comptroller
City of Stoughton

207 S. Forrest St.

Stoughton, WI 53589

Desk (608) 873-6691

Cell (608) 719-2161

City Hall (608) 873-6677

Fax (608) 873-5519
DEhlinger@ci.stoughton.wi.us
WWW.ci.stoughton.wi.us

BakerTilly US Confidentiality Notice: This message is being sent by BakerTilly US. It is intended exclusively for the
individuals and entities to which it is addressed. This communication, including any attachments, may contain
information that is proprietary, privileged, confidential, including information that is protected under the HIPAA privacy
rules, or otherwise legally exempt from disclosure. If you are not the named addressee, you are not authorized to read,
print, retain, copy or disseminate this message or any part of it. If you have received this message in error, please notify
the sender immediately by email and delete all copies of this message. This message is protected by applicable legal
privileges and is confidential. Tax advice, if any, contained in this communication was not intended or written to be used
by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding penalties.





		09 R-06-2023 Creation of irrevocable fiduciary trust for Firefighters Pension Fund

		09a  Dues Uses memo (undated)

		09b Actuarial response regarding pension trust fund

		09c Auditor response re pension trust fund








03/29/2023 10:12 AM BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY Page: 1/1
User: DAVE Period Ending 03/31/2023
DB: Stoughton

Fund 243 FIRE PENSION FUND
Current Year
GL Number Description Beg. Balance Balance

*** Assets *x*

243-00000-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING 6,488.74 6,444.68
243-00000-11200 FIREMENS PENSION INVESTMENTS 44,280.88 44,280.88
243-00000-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 854,734.69 609,754.57
243-00000-11350 CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSITS 0.00 250,000.00

Total Assets 905,504.31 910,480.13

***% Tiabilities ***

Total Liabilities 0.00 0.00

*** Fund Balance ***

243-00000-39600 FUND BALANCE RESTRICTED 904,009.41 904,009.41
Total Fund Balance 904,009.41 904,009.41
Beginning Fund Balance - 2022 904,009.41
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 2022 1,494.90
*2022 End FB/2023 Beg FB 905,504.31
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year 4,975.82
Ending Fund Balance 910,480.13
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 910,480.13

* Year Not Closed



dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight










03/29/2023 10:30 AM REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY Page: 1/1

User: DAVE PERIOD ENDING 03/31/2023
DB: Stoughton % Fiscal Year Completed: 24.66
2023 YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE
ORIGINAL 2023 03/31/2023  MONTH 03/31/23 BALANCE % BDGT
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET  AMENDED BUDGET NORM (ABNORM) INCR (DECR) NORM (ABNORM) USED

Fund 243 - FIRE PENSION FUND
Dept 52200 - FIRE DEPT
Account Type: Revenue

243-52200-43420 FIRE INSURANCE REBATE 43,600.00 43,600.00 0.00 0.00 43,600.00 0.00
243-52200-48110 INTEREST INCOME 10,000.00 10,000.00 5,035.52 0.00 4,964.48 50.36
243-52200-48199 INVESTMENT MARKET ADJUSTMENTS (4,900.00) (4,900.00) 0.00 0.00 (4,900.00) 0.00
Total Revenue: 48,700.00 48,700.00 5,035.52 0.00 43,664.48 10.34
Account Type: Expenditure

243-52200-50130 FIRE PENSION BENEFIT 42,000.00 42,000.00 0.00 0.00 42,000.00 0.00
243-52200-50211 POSTAGE 0.00 0.00 2.70 0.00 (2.70) 100.00
243-52200-50400 OUTSIDE LEGAL SERVICES 0.00 0.00 57.00 57.00 (57.00) 100.00
243-52200-50404 ACTUARIAL FEES 6,700.00 6,700.00 0.00 0.00 6,700.00 0.00
Total Expenditure: 48,700.00 48,700.00 59.70 57.00 48,640.30 0.12
Net - Dept 52200 - FIRE DEPT 0.00 0.00 4,975.82 (57.00) (4,975.82)

Fund 243 - FIRE PENSION FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 48,700.00 48,700.00 5,035.52 0.00 43,664.48 10.34
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 48,700.00 48,700.00 59.70 57.00 48,640.30 0.12

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 4,975.82 (57.00) (4,975.82) 100.00



dehlinger

Highlight






RCITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton Designating Local Depositories
and Authorized Signatures for the City of Stoughton and Stoughton Utilities

Committee Action:  Finance Committee recommended approval  on 04/11/2023
Fiscal Impact: None
File Number: R-xxx-2023 Date Introduced: ~ April 18, 2023

The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:

RECITALS

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County,
Wisconsin, that the following are, and that they are designated as, depositories for funds of the
City of Stoughton:

a. U.S.Bank, N.A,,

b. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.,
One Community Bank,
Associated Bank, N.A.,
OIld National Bank,
First Business Bank,
State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP),
Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative (WISC) of PMA Network
Fidelity Investments; and,

FER e Ao

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Director of Finance/Comptroller and the Utilities
Finance Manager are hereby granted the authority to add additional depositories for investment of
funds but are required to notify the City of Stoughton Finance Committee in writing within thirty
(30) calendar days of adding such a depository; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following positions and current individuals be,
and are hereby authorized to sign on behalf of the City of Stoughton all necessary checks and other
withdrawal orders for the withdrawals of City funds from such depositories:

a. Mayor — Tim Swadley,

b. City Clerk — Candee Christen,

c. Director of Finance/Comptroller — David P. Ehlinger, and

d. City Treasurer — Lisa Aide; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following positions and current individuals be,





and are hereby, authorized to sign on behalf of the City of Stoughton Electric, Water, and
Wastewater Utilities, all necessary checks and other withdrawal orders for the withdrawal of
Electric, Water, and Wastewater from such depositories:

a. Utilities Director — Jill Weiss,

b. Assistant Utilities Director — Brian R. Hoops, and

c. Utilities Finance Manager — Shannon Statz; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Stoughton Utilities withdrawals from LGIP
deposits must be coordinated by the City Treasurer and Utilities Finance Manager; and

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the facsimile signatures of the Mayor, Director of
Finance/Comptroller, and City Treasurer, as adopted by them be approved.

The above and foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the Common Council of the City of
Stoughton at a meeting held on the 18th day of April, 2023.

Council Action: I:I Adopted I:I Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: I:I Accept I:I Veto

Tim Swadley, Mayor Date

Council Action: |:| Override Vote







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL
Amend 2023 adopted budget to approve APRA funds to Stoughton Area Community
Foundation
Committee Committee of the Whole recommended approval 9-0 on 04/06/2023
Action: Finance Committee recommended approval __ on
File Number: R-063-2023 Date 04/11/23

The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton received American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds
totaling $1,372,623.42 during calendar years 2021 and 2022; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has approved the following expenditures as per the
chart below:

Authority Payee Purpose Amount Paid Out
Baker Tilly, LLP Lost revenue calculations S 3,456 Yes
R-181-2022 Stoughton Utilities Lead service line project 110,000 Yes
R-211-2022 Stoughton Innovation Center Start up funds 125,000 Yes
R-039-2023 To be determined New EMS ambulance 184,730 Pending
Total S 423,186 ;and,

WHEREAS, the remaining available ARPA funds is $$949,437.42; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Committee of the Whole recommended to the
Common Council 9-0 at their meeting on 04/06/2023 to provide $100,000 in ARPA funds to the
Stoughton Area Community Foundation and asking the Stoughton Area Community Foundation
Board to (a) consider providing grants up to $20,000 per request and (b) consider including project
staff costs in these grant awards; and,

WHEREAS, the Stoughton Area Community Foundation has agreed to provide
documentation to the City of Stoughton Finance Department on the grant awards and expenditures
for compliance reporting to the US Department of Treasury; and,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Stoughton Area Community
Foundation be provided $100,000 in ARPA funds for funding grant applications through their
foundation; and,





BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council asks the
Stoughton Area Community Foundation Board to consider grant awards up to $20,000 per
application and also consider including project staff costs as part of the grant award; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the adopted 2023 budget be amended to increase
budgeted expenditures by $100,000 as indicated on the chart below:

Account Account Revenues Expenses
Number Description Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Insert department here
254-54980-43310 Fed Grant - ARPA $100,000
254-54980-50396  Grant Expenditures 100,000
Net totals $100,000 $100,000

and,

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Director of Finance/Comptroller is hereby
granted the authority to modify the amended budget for the above revenue and expenditure
accounts based upon documentation provided by the Stoughton Area Community Foundation for
correct classification on the annual financial statements, Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and
State Awards and Wisconsin Department of Revenue Form C.

Budget amendments require approval by eight (8) members elected.

Council Action: |:|Ad0pted |:| Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: |:|Accept I:I Veto

Mayor Tim Swadley Date

Council Action: |:| Override Vote






